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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Prime Intelligence
Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

LISTING

On 14 February 2018, the Company was successfully listed (the “Listing”)
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Listing has laid a foundation for the Group’s continuous
development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a provider of biometrics identification solutions in Hong
Kong (“Hong Kong”) Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”), Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC (“Macau”) and the PRC. The Group markets itself
using the brand “Solution Expert’. The Group markets its products
through the sales of products which include biometrics identification
devices and other devices and accessories, and provision of auxiliary and
other services. The Group’s biometrics identification devices have one or
more of the following functions: face identification; fingerprint identification;
finger vein identification; hand geometry identification; and iris
identification.

The Group would like to share more details of its performance, financial
position and other information for the year ended 31 March 2023 with
shareholders (“Shareholders”) in the following section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

PROSPECTS

Apart from its commitment to the development of its principal business,
the Group will actively make progress to generate growth and strive for
potential and new business opportunities. The Group plans to further its
growth in existing business by strengthening its marketing capabilities and
expanding its product portfolio through enhancing software development,
with a view to further enlarging its market share in Hong Kong and Macau
and becoming one of the active biometrics identification solutions
providers in the PRC. As such, the Group plans to utilise the net proceeds
from the Listing on (i) enhancing the quality of after-sales and
strengthening the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the
business in the Southern China; (i) improving its information technology
system; (iii) setting up a new and separate software development centre
in the PRC to further enhance and develop the Group’s software; and (iv)
research and development on touchless biometrics identification devices
and Artificial Intelligence & Internet of Things (“AloT”).
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

The Group plans to diversify its business to maintain a healthy portfolio.
Leveraging on the experience of the Directors, the Group considers
setting up new business lines including artificial intelligence technology
solutions, catering management and trade services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group remains committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. All board committees have effectively supported the Board
in carrying out its responsibilities. By conducting its business under good
corporate governance, the Group’s and Shareholder’s long term interests
will be maximised.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest thanks to the
management and the staff of the Group for their significant contributions.
I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all Shareholders and
investors for their endless support. With the solid business base and the
effort of all staff, the Group will endeavour to open a new chapter in the
future.

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

OVERVIEW BE

The Group is a provider of biometrics identification solutions in Hong ~ ZN&EBEAZES - JRPT Kt B 80 4 W45 i B R 77 244
Kong, Macau and the PRC. The Group derives revenue from the following &R - AEBFBA NEBKEZBHELWZ  ((HEELED
business activities: () sales of biometrics identification devices, security  HEFEAIEE - RELEREEMEMF  R()REEEEK
products, and other accessories; and (i) provision of auxiliary and other — E M iRTS - REBMA LD IS EPIE B A —E= Z (A
services. The Group’s biometrics identification devices have one or more  TNIH&E : () ARGsk Bl 5 (i) 384 B (i) FEERAR % B! ¢ (V)
of the following functions: (i) face identification; (ii) fingerprint identification;  ZFZ 5l + K V) ILIE R - # = 20234F3 A31 8 1H4F
(iiiy finger vein identification; (iv) hand geometry identification; and (v) iris & » REBEK KRN A3 2 BEBTT - BEZE 2022 F 3
identification. The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 331 BIFFE4)49.0 B &B TR A4 11.8% » Wzm 4
2023 was approximately HK$43.2 million, representing a decrease by ~ FEHA () EWEHBEBRIEE - RELE T R E A5
approximately 11.8% from approximately HK$49.0 million for the year & #2022 F R IR %47 BEB T (514.4%) 5 K& (i)
ended 31 March 2022. The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable 3K B2 A E & H b RIS 8 Yk 25 802022 4 B HA R 2 491 1
to (i) decrease in sales of biometrics identification devices, security HAE&BT(6.9%) °

products and other accessories by approximately HK$4.7 million (or

14.4%) as compared with the corresponding period in 2022; and (ii)

decrease in revenue derived from provision of auxiliary and other services

by approximately HK$1.1 million (or 6.9%) as compared with the

corresponding period in 2022.

Revenue represents the invoiced values of goods sold and services Wzt 5 FTE i R IR ARG AV B =B - H R4S HA R 440

rendered, after allowances for returns and discounts during the reporting — BriRE &I -

periods.
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31BILLEE
2023 2022
2023 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Sales of biometrics identification devices, SHELEMBEHIES  RLEERK
security products and other accessories i 27,737 32,301
Provision of auxiliary and other services REEERAMRS 15,414 16,561
43,151 48,952

MR EEAIR AT / £372023 7



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WK

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The majority of the Group’s cost of sales and services rendered was
costs of inventories sold. The Group’s costs of inventories sold decreased
by approximately 11.7% to approximately HK$14.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$16.2 million). The gross
profit margin dropped from approximately 34.1% for the year ended 31
March 2022 to approximately 30.2% for the year ended 31 March 2023.
The gross profit also dropped from approximately HK$16.7 million for the
year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$13.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 20283. The decrease in gross profit was mainly due to (i)
the increase in direct cost incurred by the operation of the software
development centre in the PRC; and (ii) the decrease in sales of
biometrics identification devices, security products and other accessories.

Expenses

Staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2023 was approximately
HK$30.8 million (2022: approximately HK$28.3 million), representing an
increase by approximately HK$2.5 million as compared with that of last
corresponding period, which was mainly due to the increase in the
number of employees and salary increment during the period.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2023 were
approximately HK$28.7 million (2022: approximately HK$32.5 million),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$3.8 million as compared
with the last corresponding period, which was mainly due to the decrease
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment.

Taxes

The income tax expense comprised Hong Kong Profits Tax, Macau
Complementary Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year. The
income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2023 was
approximately HK$132,000 (2022: approximately HK$146,000.

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax Regime, one of the Company’s Hong
Kong subsidiaries is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of
8.25% for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: 8.25%) for the first
HK$2 million of its estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: 16.5%) on its estimated assessable profits
above HK$2 million. Other Hong Kong subsidiaries not qualifying for the
two-tiered Profit Tax Regime are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the
rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: 16.5%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE D

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in the PRC is subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% for the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: 25%). No PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil) as the Group’s
PRC subsidiary did not generate any assessable profits during the
reporting periods.

The Group’s subsidiary established and operated in the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau”) of the PRC is subject to Macau
Complementary Tax, under which taxable income of up to Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) 600,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: MOP600,000)
is exempted from taxation with taxable income beyond this amount to be
taxed at the rate of 12% for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: 12%).

Loss for the Year

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$24.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2023, as compared with a net loss of approximately
HK$23.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2022. The increase in net
loss was mainly due to (i) the increase in selling and distribution costs; (i)
the increase in impairment loss on right-of-use assets; and (iii) the
decrease in gross profit margin and gross profit.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Historically, the Group has funded the liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through operating cash flows, bank borrowings and proceeds
from Listing. The Directors believe that with the new capital from Listing,
the Group is in a healthy financial position to expand its core business
and to achieve its business objectives. As at 31 March 2023, the Group
had no bank borrowings (31 March 2022: Nil). The Group requires cash
primarily for working capital needs. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had
approximately HK$17.9 million in bank and cash balances (31 March
2022: approximately HK$36.9 million).

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group has no outstanding
borrowings, accordingly there is no gearing ratio.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATION REVIEW

Outlook

The ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) of the Company
have been successfully listed on GEM on 14 February 2018. The Board
considers that such public listing status will allow the Company to gain
access to the capital market for corporate finance exercise, assist the
Company in the future business development, enhance the Group’s
corporate profile and recognition and strengthen its competitiveness.

Considering the decrease in market demand and the uncertainties
brought by the development of the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
in the PRC, the Group has decided to suspend the plan to launch
affordable locally manufactured fingerprint identification devices as part of
the expansion plan of the business in the Southern China, and has
planned to reallocate part of the utilised net proceeds from the Listing to
other business plans, namely () enhancement of the quality of after-sales
services and strengthening of the operation support; (i) improving the
information technology system; (iii) research and development on
touchless biometrics identification devices and AloT; and (iv) working
capital.

The Group has observed that there has been a change of market trend
from touch biometrics identification devices to touchless biometrics
identification devices due to increased public health awareness under the
COVID-19 pandemic. As such, the Group plans to apply part of the
utilised net proceeds from the Listing for research and development on
touchless biometrics identification devices and AloT. The Group plans to
diversify the functions of its touchless biometrics identification devices
and their applications by utilizing AloT in order to capture the market of
touchless biometrics identification devices with healthcare-related
functions. Looking forward, the Board takes the view that AloT and its
functions can be applied in many different scenarios that the Group’s
biometrics identification devices can be involved. The Group plans to
capture and develop new markets in light of the growing popularity and
application of AloT in daily life.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 77 employees. The
Group’s staff cost for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$30.8 million (2022: approximately HK$28.3 million).
The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practise and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with its employees. The remuneration
payable to its employees includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits
and incentives include training and share option.
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In Hong Kong, the Group’s employees have participated in the mandatory
provident fund prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In the PRC, the
Group’s employees have participated in the basic pension insurance,
basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational injury
insurance, maternity insurance prescribed by the Social Insurance Law of
the PRC ((FZE AR KRB L& REE)), and housing fund prescribed
by the Regulations on the Administration of Housing Fund (({FE A&
EIBIEH1)). Al PRC based employees have the right to participate in the
social insurance and housing provident fund schemes.

Capital Expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$1.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022:
approximately HK$5.1 million).

Capital Commitments
The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at 31
March 2023 (2022: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company does not have significant exposure on foreign currency
risk.

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally denominated
in HK$, Renminbi (‘RMB”), MOP and Great British Pound. The Group has
certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of respective Group entities such as United
Stated dollars (“US$”), RMB and EURO. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives agreement and did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange
exposure during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or
any plan for material investments or capital assets.

Charges over Assets of the Group
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, there were no charges over assets of the
Group.
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Dividend
The Directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the then shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) on 18 January 2018 for the primary
purpose to attract, retain and motivate talented participants, to strive for
future developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Share Option Scheme include any employees, executive Directors,
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors),
advisers, consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted, after which no further share options will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain
in full force and effect and share options which are granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme were summarized in the paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) published
by the Company in relation to the Listing. No share option has been
granted, exercised, expired, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption and up to the date of this report.

Use of proceeds and actual progress of the Group’s business
objectives

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting the underwriting fees
and other related expenses paid by the Company in connection with the
share offer) which amounted to approximately HK$44.5 million will be
used for the intended purposes as set out in the section headed
“Statement of Business Objectives and Strategies” of the
Prospectus. Among the Net Proceeds, a sum of approximately HK$15.8
million (the “Remaining Net Proceeds”) was originally planned for
launching affordable locally manufactured fingerprint identification devices
as part of the expansion plan of the business in the Southern China.
However, such Remaining Net Proceeds have not been utilised and the
Group has decided to suspend the plan to launch affordable locally
manufactured fingerprint identification devices as part of the expansion
plan of the business in the Southern China, and has planned to reallocate
the relevant utilised net proceeds to other business plans, namely (i)
enhancement of the quality of after-sales services and strengthening of
the operation support; (i) improving the information technology system; (iii)
research and development on touchless biometrics identification devices
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and AloT; and (iv) working capital. For details of the change in use of
proceeds, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2
December 2022 (the “Announcement”). Set out below is the actual
usage of net proceeds up to the date of this report:

RIEBRACT : K(v&EER - AAMBRIERRE
15 - B2MARARBEA2022F 12 B2 AN AH([#
D) c A TRFEAEEARE B AILFTBRIEFE
WERRR -

Revised
Original Utilised Unutilised allocation of Unutilised
allocationof ~ NetProceeds ~ NetProceeds  the unutilised  Net Proceeds
Net Proceeds as at the as at the according as at
as stated in date of the date of the to the the date of
the Prospectus  Announcement Announcement Announcement this report
REZAHH
ARERMLE WIAGEEN REOKAHN  HRBARE  REARERE
FEsERE EHAME HARB RS RIEREN Wi RE A
HREDE RERE REFH BEITIE  FEHEFE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEL BEAT BEAT BEEL BEAT
Expanding the business in Southern China FREEHELE
— launch of affordable locally manufactured — B EE T B ERES
fingerprint identification devices ERIEE 15.8 - 15.8 - -
— enhancement of the quality of after-sales sevices — ERERRENEZR
and strengthening of the operation support MBLES R 5.1 (5.1) - 30 24
Improving the information technology system  BEEBANBZE 50 (5.0) - 3.0 2.1
Setting up a new and separate software RPERL - BN LRH
development center in the PRC to further BRAONE-SRAR
enhance and develop the Group’s software BREEENEL 15.2 (15.2) - - -
Research and development on touchless HRERBENER
biometrics identification devices and BRABEUARATERER
Artificial Intelligence & Internet of Things bl - - - 6.8 59
Working capital BELS 34 (3.4) - 30 -
445 (28.7) 15.8 15.8 10.4

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group’s business objectives are to
further its growth in existing business by strengthening marketing
capabilities and expanding product portfolio through enhancing software
development, in order to further enlarge its market share in Hong Kong
and Macau and to become one of the active biometrics identification
solutions providers in the PRC. The Directors intend to achieve the
objectives by (i) enhancing the quality of aftersales services and
strengthening the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the
business in the Southern China; (i) improving the information technology
system; (iii) setting up a new and separate software development centre
in the PRC to further enhance and develop the Group’s software; and (iv)
research and development on touchless biometrics identification devices
and AloT.
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The Group had planned to use approximately HK$15.8 million of net
proceeds to launch affordable locally manufactured fingerprint
identification devices as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China to other business plans of the Company. As disclosed in
this report and the Announcement, due to the reasons disclosed in the
Announcement, the Group has decided to suspend the plan to launch
affordable locally manufactured fingerprint identification devices as part of
the expansion plan of the business in the Southern China, and has
planned to reallocate the relevant utilised net proceeds to other business
plans.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$8.1 million of net
proceeds to enhance the quality of after-sales services and to strengthen
the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the business in the
Southern China. As at 31 March 2023, a total of approximately HK$5.7
million was spent on enhancing the quality of after-sales services and
strengthening the operation support as part of the expansion plan of the
business in the Southern China.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$8.0 million of net
proceeds to improve the information technology system. As at 31 March
2023, a total of approximately HK$5.9 million was spent on improving the
information technology system.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$15.2 million of net
proceeds to set up a new and separate software development centre in
the PRC to further enhance and develop the Group’s software. As at 31
March 2023, a total of approximately HK$15.2 million was spent on
setting up a new and separate software development centre in the PRC
to further enhance and develop the Group’s software.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$6.8 million of net
proceeds to research and development on touchless biometrics
identification devices and AloT. As at 31 March 2023, a total of
approximately HK$0.9 million was spent on research and development
on touchless biometrics identification devices and AloT.

The Group had planned to use approximately HK$6.4 million of net

proceeds to working capital. As at 31 March 2023, a total of
approximately HK$6.4 million was spent on working capital.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (“Mr. Tony Yuen”), aged 52, is one of the
founders of the Group, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director,
the chief executive officer of the Group and one of the substantial
shareholders (the “Substantial Shareholders”) of the Company. He
joined the Group as a director on 28 June 1999 and was re-designated
as an executive Director on 6 November 2015. He is responsible for
major decision-making, overall strategic planning and day-to-day
business management. Mr. Tony Yuen is a director of Power Truth
Holdings Limited (“Power Truth”), Solution Expert Technology Limited
(“SE Technology”), Solution Expert Engineering Limited (“SE
Engineering”), Solution Expert Technology (R&D) Limited (“SE R&D”),
and Solution Expert Technology (Macau) Limited (“SE Macau”). He is
also the chairman, general manager and legal representative of Solution
Expert Technology (Shenzhen) Limited* (“SE Shenzhen”). In addition, he
is a director and a shareholder holding 85% of the entire issued shares of
Delighting View Global Limited (“Delighting View”).

Mr. Tony Yuen has over 26 years of experience in software programming.
He obtained a bachelor of engineering degree from the University of Hong
Kong in January 1995. Before he joined the Group, he was the head of
information systems department of PENTAX group in Hong Kong from
1996 to 1998, and was responsible for developing networking and
computer solution systems in different computerisation projects. Mr. Tony
Yuen has not held any directorship in any other public companies, the
securities of which are or have been listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Tony Yuen is a brother of Ms. Pauline Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Substantial Shareholders), the spouse of Ms. Jazzy Wong (a
member of the senior management) and a brother-in-law of Mr. Joseph
Yam (the non-executive Director).
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Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline (“Ms. Pauline Yuen”), aged 54, is an
executive Director and one of the Substantial Shareholders. She was
redesignated as an executive Director on 6 November 2015 and is mainly
responsible for overseeing corporate policies and human resources of the
Group. She is a director of Power Truth, SE Technology, SE Engineering,
SE R&D, SE Shenzhen and SE Macau. In addition, she is also a director
and a shareholder holding 15% of the entire issued shares of Delighting
View.

Ms. Pauline Yuen has over 30 years of experience in accounting, during
which she has also obtained over 16 years of experience in finance and
management. She obtained a bachelor of science degree in business
administration and accounting from the California State University in the
United States in August 1992. She worked in Wing On Department Stores
(Hong Kong) Limited from November 1992 to April 1994, with her last
position being assistant accountant. She then worked in China Online
(Bermuda) Limited, from April 1994 to September 1999, with her last
position being senior accountant. She was the accounting manager of
Tricom CyberWorld Holdings Limited from September 1999 to December
2000. From September 2001 to January 2006, she worked in Hing Wah
Lung QOil & Rice Limited with her last positing being the accounting and
administration manager. She was employed by Pacific Century Matrix (HK)
Limited from February 2006 to May 2007 with her last position being
manager, finance and administration and was mainly responsible for
management of treasury function and finance and accounting operations.

Ms. Pauline Yuen is the sister of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Substantial Shareholders) and a sister-in-law of Mr. Joseph
Yam (the non-executive Director) and Ms. Jazzy Wong (a member of the
senior management).
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Mr. Mui Pak Kuen (“Mr. Mui”), aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 January 2018 and
redesignated as an executive Director on 2 March 2020. Mr. Mui is mainly
responsible for providing market and industry knowledge in assisting
strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Mui has over 36 years of experience in information technology and
telecommunication industry. He first joined COL Limited as an analyst
programmer from July 1986 to January 1990. From February 1990 to
June 1992, Mr. Mui worked as a consultant in Logica Limited.
Subsequently, he served as a senior consultant in Hutchison Paging
Limited from October 1992 to March 1994 and was mainly responsible
for liaising with business partners in application specification. He then
worked in Hutchison Telecommunications (Hong Kong) Limited from April
1994 to October 1997 as the information technology manager for the
fixed network operation and was mainly responsible for leading the fixed
network IT project team for product evaluation, development and
implementation. Mr. Mui was then employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers
from August 1998 to December 1999 as a supervising consultant. He
later worked as the assistant vice-president in business development in
PCCW Limited from January 2000 to July 2011. From July 2011 to
January 2017, Mr. Mui was the head of Greater China business
development in Tiaxa International Company Limited.

Mr. Mui obtained a diploma in business computer studies from the
Faculty of Business in Lingnan College Hong Kong in November 1986.
He subsequently obtained a master of economics degree in business
administration from Zhongshan University in the PRC in January 1998 and
further obtained a bachelor of computing degree from the University of
South Australia in September 2004.

Mr. Hui Cho Lung (“Mr. Hui”), aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director on 10 January 2023. He is mainly responsible for overseeing the
sales and marketing functions of the Group.

Mr. Hui has over 25 years of experience in the engineering industry. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Hui served Artesyn Embedded Technologies
(Hong Kong) Limited as a test engineer from May 1994 to May 1997, a
senior test engineer from May 1997 to October 1999, an assistant
program manager from October 1999 to July 2000, a program manager
from July 2000 to July 2009, a new program introduction manager in
embedded computing from July 2009 to July 2010, a senior manager in
embedded computing operations from July 2010 to January 2013, a
director in operations from January 2013 to January 2017 and a director
in manufacturing engineering from January 2017 to June 2019.
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Mr. Hui obtained a bachelor’s degree in Electronic Engineering at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1994. He further obtained the
certification of Project Management Professional (PMP) at Project
Management Institute (PMI) in 2007.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph (“Mr. Joseph Yam”), aged 68, was
appointed as an executive Director on 6 November 2015 and was
redesignated as a non-executive Director on 1 April 2017. He is mainly
responsible for providing market and industry knowledge in assisting
strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Joseph Yam dedicated his career to the Hong Kong Police Force for
over 34 years. He began as a probationary inspector in 1977, and was
subsequently promoted to senior inspector in 1987 and to chief inspector
in 1990. In 2004, he was further promoted to superintendent, the rank he
held until his retirement in December 2009. Mr. Joseph Yam was
employed by Hong Yip Service Company Ltd., a subsidiary of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Ltd., as head of security and was responsible for the
overall management, business development, profitability and operations
of its security department, since June 2010. From November 2016 to
May 2020, Mr. Joseph Yam has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Kingland Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Sing on Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1751), a company providing concrete
demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau.

Mr. Joseph Yam is the brother-in-law of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the
executive Directors and Substantial Shareholders), Ms. Jazzy Wong (a
member of the senior management) and Ms. Pauline Yuen (one of the
executive Directors and Substantial Shareholders).
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Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella (“Ms. Leung”), aged 51, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 10 February 2023. She is mainly responsible
for providing market and industry knowledge in assisting strategic
planning of the Group.

Ms. Leung has over 25 years of experience in the technology and
electronics industries. From July 1997 to April 2010, Ms. Leung served as
various roles including senior costing engineer, IT support manager,
senior purchasing and sourcing manager, business development manager
and general manager (international business) in Philips Electronics Hong
Kong Limited, Mattel Toys HK Limited, Premium Sound Solutions (PSS)
Hong Kong Limited, Binatone Electronics International Limited and DIS
Technology (Hong Kong) Limited. From September 2013 to September
2016, she served as the sales director of Millennium Pacific Group
Holdings Limited (“Millennium Pacific Group”), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 8147)
and was the executive director of Millennium Pacific Group from May
2015 to September 2016. She served as the director and general
manager of Millennium Pacific Trading Limited, a wholly owned indirect
subsidiary of Millennium Pacific Group from April 2015 to September
2017. In September 2017, Ms. Leung established a sport and fitness
technology company, Archon Wellness Limited (“Archon Wellness”).
She is currently the chief executive officer and director of Archon
Wellness.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

RPERLT([RLt]) 515 R2023F2 4100 #
RIEINTES TZAREBIREMS RITENH
BN E RS IR E o

RUTHBEREFITEABH25FL5H - W1997F 7
RZ2010F4 8 RETHRRFBEEFEEERAF
EHZA(FEH) BR2AAE - Premium Sound Solutions
(PSS) Hong Kong Limited + EF BB ER A5 &DIS
Technology (Hong Kong) Limited i E N EEEAL - B
FIEBITIZAD - AR EAIE  SREELRE %
BERKBRBEE(BKRER) R2013F9AE
2016F9 5 - WEEEBRTFFEEZERERAR ([E
BATEEE]) (—HREABEXIHERATGEM
EHERAR (BRMDRSR - 8147)) MIHE AW H 2015 F
5AZ2016F9 AEEES AT FREHMITESE -
R2016F4 AE2017F9 REEERB R A EEMES
& M$ B 2 & Millennium Pacific Trading Limited #) & 25 3
BACIR o PA2017F9R » BTV BE RS REA
7] Archon Wellness Limited ([ Archon Wellness |) »  f§
TREF & Archon Wellness BT TR ABHL R E = -

19



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Billy (“Mr. Chung?”), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 January 2018. He is
responsible for overseeing the management independently and providing
independent judgement on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree in chartered accountancy
studies from The University of Waterloo, Canada in June 1999. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from the University
of Toronto, Canada in June 2004. Mr. Chung also obtained a diploma in
investigative and forensic accounting from the University of Toronto
Mississauga in 2013 and completed a business analytics certificate
programme, which is an online distance learning course, from the
Northwestern University, the United States, in August 2016.

Mr. Chung has over 17 years of management experience. Mr. Chung
worked as an assistant manager in H.C. Watt & Company Limited in
Hong Kong from August 2005 to July 2006 and was mainly responsible
for assisting in the initial public offering auditing. In June 2007, Mr. Chung
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Culturecom
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 0343), and was subsequently re-designated as an
executive director in November 2007. He resigned from Culturecom
Holdings Limited in September 2016. From August 2013 to January
2017, Mr. Chung was the senior advisor of WTM Company Limited, a
software development company in Hong Kong, and was responsible for
advising on business strategies and development. Since November 2016,
Mr. Chung has been the general manager of GoAnimate Hong Kong
Limited and is responsible for its business development activities in the
Asia-Pacific region.

Mr. Chung was admitted as an accredited chartered accountant under
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada in November
2001 and re-designated as a chartered professional accountant in
November 2012. He was also admitted as a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in June 2010. Mr. Chung
was further granted as the certified fraud examiner by the Association of
Certified Fraud Examiners, the United States, in May 2016. He was also
certified by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
United States, to be certified in financial forensics (CFF) in August 2016.
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Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard (“Mr. Poon”), aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 2 March 2020. He is
responsible for overseeing the management independently and providing
independent judgement on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Poon has over 29 years of experience in the accounting, auditing,
internal auditing and corporate finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. Since
March 2001, he has been the sole practitioner of Richard Poon & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Poon has also been serving as the
managing director of Richard Poon & Partners (C.P.A.) Limited since
August 2013.

Mr. Poon was conferred his Master of Business Administration from the
University of South Australia in April 1999. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as well as a practicing
certified public accountant and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wong Ching Wan (“Mr. Wong”), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 June 2022. He has profound
experience in audit, internal control, financial control and capital markets.
He has acted as director in different listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong has been an independent non-executive director of Top Standard
Corporation, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 8510) since
January 2020. He has been the chief financial officer of Intelligent Living
Application Group Inc. since June 2020. He was a director of Network
CN, Inc. (stock code: NWCN), which shares are duly traded in the USA,
from August 2015 to July 2017, and has been its independent director
since January 2022.

Previously, Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of
Grand Field Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 115) between December 2008 to
January 2009. From May 2015 to June 2018, he was an independent
non-executive director of Huge China Holdings Limited (currently known
as Cocoon Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 428). He served as the company secretary
and authorized representative of China Oil Gangran Energy Group
Holdings Limited (currently known as Century Energy International
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8132) from December 2015 to October 2016 and from
December 2015 to January 2017, respectively. From March 2016 to April
2022, he was an independent non-executive director of On Real
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8245).
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Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Business and Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in May 1989 and a Bachelor of Business
from The University of Southern Queensland in April 1992. Mr. Wong is a
member of CPA Australia since October 1992, Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada since January 1999, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since March 1999 and fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since October 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Ka Man, Jazzy (“Ms. Jazzy Wong”), aged 44, is the senior
manager of SE Engineering and is responsible for assisting Ms. Danielle
Sun in conducting the Group’s sales and marketing. She is also a director
of SE Shenzhen. Ms. Jazzy Wong obtained a bachelor of arts degree in
computing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2004. Prior to joining the Group, she worked at South China Media
Limited as web developer in the online department from July 2000 to
September 2000. She joined SE Engineering in October 2000.

Ms. Jazzy Wong is the spouse of Mr. Tony Yuen (one of the executive
Directors and Substantial Shareholders), and a sister-in-law of Ms. Pauline
Yuen (one of the executive Directors and Substantial Shareholders) and
Mr. Joseph Yam (the non-executive Director).

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho (“Mr. Chou”), aged 41, is the company secretary
and financial controller of the Group, and is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting, financial planning, financial control and
company secretarial matters. He first joined as the company secretary of
SE Technology in September 2015 and was subsequently promoted as
the company secretary and financial controller in November 2016. He
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) in November 2015.
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Mr. Chou has over 19 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chou worked in an accounting firm from
September 2003 to January 2006, with his last position being semi-senior
auditor. He then joined PricewaterhouseCoopers from January 2006 to
December 2010. From January 2011 to March 2012, Mr. Chou worked
as the head of corporate services of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1803) (formerly known as ASR Logistics Holdings
Limited). Since April 2013, Mr. Chou has been working as the financial
controller and company secretary of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on GEM, stock code: 8147) (“MP Group”). Mr.
Chou resigned as the financial controller and the company secretary of
MP Group in September 2014 and March 2017 respectively. Mr. Chou
also served as the chief financial officer of HF Financial Group Limited and
subsequently transferred to HF Management (China) Limited from January
2015 to July 2016. Mr. Chou has been the director of Archon Prime
Strategic (Group) Limited. Mr. Chou has been an executive director and
the authorised representative of Xinming China Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
2699) on 5 February 2020 and re-designated as a non-executive director
on 1 May 2020. Mr. Chou resigned as a non-executive director and the
authorised representative of Xinming China Holdings Limited on 18
November 2021 and 25 November 2021 respectively.

Mr. Chou obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Mr. Chou was
admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant in November 2011. He was also admitted as a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in November 2010
and subsequently a fellow member in November 2015.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group primarily adopts the principles and basis of the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, with
an aim to establish a sound environmental, social and governance
structure.

This report covers the Group’s overall performance in two subject
areas, namely, environmental and social aspect of the business
operations in Hong Kong office for the period from 1 April 2022 to
31 March 2023 (the “Year” or “2023”), unless otherwise stated.

This report comprises the review of environmental, social and
governance areas (“ESG”), which sets out the Company and its
major subsidiaries’ policies and practices in respect of three
environmental aspects and eight social aspects in accordance with
ESG Guide for the Year. This report is designed to allow the
Company’s stakeholders, such as Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers, employees, creditors, regulators and the
general public to have comprehensive understanding of the long-
term sustainability information of the Group. The Group seeks to
balance the views and interests of these stakeholders through
constructive conversation with a view to setting the course for long
term prosperity. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the environmental, social and governance risks of the
Group, and ensuring that relevant risk management and internal
control systems are in place and operate effectively.

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting boundary of this report
covers the principal businesses of the Group. We regularly review
the scope of the ESG Report to ensure that significant impacts to
the Group’s overall business portfolio are covered.
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The basis of reporting principles:

° Materiality:

The Group determines material ESG issues by stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment.

° Quantitative:

Information is presented with quantitative measure, whenever
feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of
comparative data.

° Consistency:

The Report will use consistent methodologies for meaningful
comparisons in the past years unless improvements in
methodology are identified.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Board has a primary role in overseeing the Group’s ESG
issues. During the Year, the Board, the management and the ESG
working team spent significant time in evaluating the impacts of
ESG-related risks towards the operation and formulating ESG-
related policies in dealing with relevant risks. The oversight of the
Board ensures that the management and the ESG working team
can have all the right tools and resources to oversee the ESG
issues.

The management and ESG working team is primarily responsible
for reviewing and supervising the ESG process and risk
management of the Group. ESG governance matters and ESG-
related issues are reviewed at the regular meeting during the Year.

The Board has identified potential and material issues to the
business and its stakeholders. The Board has also taken part in the
materiality assessment as one of the key stakeholders of the
company in providing constructive opinions on the materiality of
ESG issues.
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MATERIALITY MATRIX

During the Year, the Group has evaluated a number of
environmental, social and operation related issues, and assessed

3 EEMEE
FA - AEEHSERE +EMELHEHRE
EITRHE > WBBRERBFEZZZELEEN

their importance to stakeholders and the Group through various ERAEENEEM -
channels.
Importance to the Group
HAEENEEN
Low Medium High
& A =
High ® Anti-discrimination Talent management Customers’ satisfaction
= RIEAR AT ER Level
Protecting labour rights Staff training and promotion EPREREE
RAEL THEF| opportunity Anti-corruption
. ETHYIREFHE RES
) Staff compensation and Product quality and safety
1= - CEES R
S welfarg pohmfs EnEERTE
2 Jay 8 T8 REMEER Suppliers management
S HERE R
Nz )
S jn Occupational health and
8 ® workplace safety
g g MERERTI(ESMES
§_ Medium Community involvement Use of resources Operational compliance
£ H NN BIRE A HEAR
Protecting customers’
privacy
REZPEL
Air emissions
RASHER
Low Preventive measures for Non-hazardous wastes Use of raw materials
® child and forced labour produced [ RHE
HET KB EBMIERE EXNBEEY Hazardous wastes produced
it} EERNBEEY
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The table underneath shows aspects on the ESG Guide to be TRINESGRER DT FEETEHMNER © A
assessed and those ESG issues were determined to be material to REERHAREEN S BEANESGEE °
the Group.
ESG Aspects as set forth in ESG Guide Material ESG issues to the Group
(ESG =155 )+ Fr# ESG B H HAEE NS EE XN ESGHE
(A) Environmental
(A) I|E
A1 Emissions Energy consumption
Al B RE2
A2  Use of Resources Use of energy and paper
A2 BIREM BEIR M AR oy (5
A3 Environment and Natural Resources
A3 EIRRERAEIR
A4 Climate Change
A4 RIREE
(B) Social
(B) H&
B1  Employment and Labour Practices Labour practices
Bl ERMBEIER BITER
B2 Health and Safety Workplace health and safety
B2 feEE%R: TEBHMEERR S
B3  Development and Training Employee development and training
B3 & KIE BT R REI
B4  Labour Standards Anti-child and forced labour
B4 45 TR feE T Ksahilss T
B5  Supply Chain Management Supply chain management
B5 fEsEE IR HrEEEn
B6  Product Responsibility Product responsibility
B6 EmafE EmEE
B7  Anti-corruption Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money laundering
B7 RES k&R - REFF R ROEE
B8 Community Involvement Community programs, employee volunteering and donation
B8 itm& HeEs  BIERESHREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group.
The Group has proactively looked for and implemented new
technology at various stages of its business in order to minimise its
impact on the environment. The Group’s products are designed to
be safe and environmental friendly for customer use, meaning
recyclable and safe to dispose materials are specified in its designs,
and clean production processes are adopted in its business
process. Moreover, unnecessary packaging that can cause harm to
environment is not introduced into its products.

The Group considers environmental protection an essential
component of sustainable and responsible business. The Group
strives to negative impacts on the environment and to seek
environmental friendly methods of operation. Given the nature of
the Group’s business, electricity was the most significant resources
consumed in Hong Kong, Macau and Shenzhen, the PRC during
the Year.

The Current Environmental Policies

The Group’s main task is to measure and report the efforts in
reducing carbon footprints, promote waste reduction at source,
enhance its waste disposal management and set targets on
environmental performance. To minimise the environmental impacts
concerning the activities, products and services, the Group will:

° comply with applicable legal requirements and other
requirements which relate to the Group’s environmental
aspects, and to which the Group subscribes;

o identify environmental impacts associated with the operations
and set the targets to reduce stress on the environment in
consideration of social expectations;

. prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimise the
consumption of resources from all daily operations and
actively promote recycle, reuse and replace; and

° educate, train and motivate employees to develop a social
viewpoint that enables them to conduct business activities in
an environmentally responsible manner.
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The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are operated in
compliance with the following laws and regulations which have
significant impact:

a. the Law of the PRC on Import and Export Commodity
Inspection (A R HEAME#E S O i miRiE);

b. Guangdong Safety Technology and Prevention Regulation
(ERAE LR & E R &),

c.  Product Quality Law of the PRC (P #EARLNEERE &
=D

d.  Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (/% A & £ A1 E
RIEREL);

e. the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution 3 A R £ B3R B IR 85
ABFIEED;

f. the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes (% A & HF1EH &
BEYSRARRNIRE);

g. the Regulations on the Administration of Construction Project
Environmental Protection {3 :% 18 E IR 35 R & & 1 15 01);
and

h.  the Anti-terrorism Law of the People’s Republic of China
Z2 AR KB R Z M E &%) and Guangdong Safety
Technology and Prevention Regulation { & B & % & £ il i
E0EIRIEM1).
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A1.1 Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption Al.1 REMRELUEFENBERE R
During the Year, the key environmental impacts from the RERN - REBEEBHFMEENETEIRE
Group’s operations were energy and paper consumptions. FERERRERER - RERRIRRE -
To achieve environmental protection, the Group encourages AEESBE I INERE FHREASFH
employees increase the use of e-statement or scanning REEHREN - WP HEKRERARAER
instead of traditional photocopying to reduce the use of BN EEEIERARE  BHMA
paper and greenhouse gas emissions; to switch-off all BB NRE (NRBARER) -

computers and office equipment (such as lighting and air-
conditioner) at the end of each working day.

(@  Since the Group did not have town fuel and town gas @ HRAEERFERILEEERTRE
consumption during the Year, therefore no relevant KT R BE - R MR AR B R U B
emissions data is available. )

(o)  The Company had certain motor vehicles during the () RFEA  XAREESETAE  #EA
Year, the emissions data applied to the Group’s motor RASETENHEREBREIINT

vehicles are set out below:

Key Performance Index (“KPI”)
BEENER (BREXEED

2023 Unit %

2023 &F B %

NOx 112.5 g 34%
A& 7

SOx 213.4 g 64%
=Rk 7

PM 8.3 g 2%
EIPNi k) 7

Total 334.2 g 100%
wmy 7
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A1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emission Al.2 BEREEHEN
KPI
BARENIER
2023 Unit %

2023 & = va %
Scope 1
EiE1
Direct Emission 39,126 Kg 40%
BEER NIy
Scope 2
#iE2
Indirect Emission 57,668 Kg 60%
el 5 BE A N
Scope 3
giE3
Other Indirect Emission - Kg 0%
F At PRI HE N
Total 96,794 Kg 100%
me N

During the Year, there were 96,794 kg (2022: 80,184 kg) of
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s operation.

The total gross floor area coverage for the Group during the
Year was 2,102m? (2022: 1,572 m?). The annual emission
intensity was 46.0 Kg CO,e/m? (2022: 51.0 Kg CO,e/m?).

The Group has previously set the amount of GHG emission
for the Year to 100 tonnes. The target will be reviewed in
2026. The Group has achieved this target during the Year.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations:

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste of the Group during the Year. In
addition, no significant fines or non-monetary sanctions for
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations had been
reported in the Year.
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A1.3 & A1.4 Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generates no hazardous waste in its operation.
However, there were non-hazardous waste which the
management of the Group believe to be insignificant arose
from the use of electricity during the Group’s operation.
Wastes produced by the Group during production were
passed to qualified recycler for recycling.

A1.5 & A1.6 Handling of Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

A2.1

Since the management of the Group believe the non-
hazardous waste is insignificant, there is no mitigation plan
for handle non-hazardous waste.

Use of resource

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental
protection. In particular, a number of initiatives designed to
conserve resources were introduced to promote employee
awareness of the need to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources.

Energy conservation will not be effective without the support
of employees. The Group has been encouraging employees
to establish energy-saving habits at office, such as switching
off lights and electronic appliances before leaving the office,
as well as maintaining indoor temperature at 25.5°C. To
further conserve electricity, the Group has leased energy-
efficient high-speed printers for its daily operation. The Group
believed that the usage of water consumption and usage of
packing material is insignificant.
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During the Year, the energy consumption by type in total of

RER - RNEE R RERE B R RER

the Group are showed as below: glomT :
KPI
BRENER
% increase/
2023 2022 Unit (decrease)
#m, ()
2023 £F 2022 B ZBED %
Electricity consumed 106,793 1,535 kWh 38%
B8 T LB
Oil consumed 140,669 137,749 kWh 21%
RS TR
Total energy consumed 247,462 215,284 kWh 15%
weeREREE F R
Total floor area of facilities 2,102 1,672 m? 34%
e AR E AR K
Electricity consumed per square meter 118 137 kWh/m? (14%)
BYHRAEE FEEFHK

The Group has previously set targets to 250,000 kWh of the
total energy consumption (i.e. electricity and oil consumed).
The target will be reviewed in 2026. The Group has achieved
the target during the Year.

Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group’s activities did not have direct significant impact
on the environment and natural resources beyond the
resource consumption and emissions issues discussed
above. The Group will continue to explore ways of integrating
environmental considerations into its business decisions and
the services it provides, including promoting and supporting
ways to combat climate change.

There was no non-compliance case with any environmental
laws and regulations for the Year.
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A4 Climate change
Global climate change is getting worse and global warming
has been a serious problem. The Group, as a responsible
enterprise, is committed to implement certain measures to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions from business operations.

To cope with adverse weather conditions, the Group takes
precautionary and protective measures including home office
arrangement, work schedule rearrangement and
redeployment of resources, to ensure the safety of
employees, to minimize the impact on business process and
to avoid any physical damages to assets of the Group.

SOCIAL

Being a responsible business and employer, the Group is
committed to consistently looking for ways to meet the corporate
social responsibilities. The Group focuses on the welfare of its staff,
environment and community as well as its business partners.

B1 Employment and Labour Practices

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing
human capital, provides competitive remuneration and
welfare packages. Promotion opportunities and salary
adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as
annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave,
funeral leave and medical coverage in accordance with local
regulations.

The Group emphasises on equal opportunities for all
personnel in respect of hiring, pay rates, training and
development, promotion and other terms of employment.
The Group is committed to providing a work environment
free from any form of discrimination on the basis of ethnicity,
gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including
employees with different genders, ages, skills, educational
backgrounds, industry experiences and other qualifications in
order to achieve the most suitable composition and balance.

A4 RIRE(L
RHRRGERCASRE  2RBEDEK
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mekFoBENEE  REEHWHRT
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REBIECHBEABERER O &
FkER EAUARAEMEREEOKS
BE - AEEBRORRHEAZEK - 145
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The Group’s remuneration package is structured with
reference to the individual performance, working experience
and prevailing salary levels in the market. In additional to
basic salaries and mandatory provident fund for the Group’s
Hong Kong employees, fringe benefits including flexible leave
arrangement, medical coverage scheme and annual dinner
are available.

The Group complies with relevant ordinances and statutory
requirements, such as the Employment Ordinance (Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong) of Hong Kong. During the Year,
the Group has had no non-compliance with any laws and
regulations on employment.

The employee handbook of the Group’s PRC subsidiary had
been developed in accordance with the Labour Law of the
PRC and has been distributed to all employees since they
joined. The remuneration policies are determined on the basis
of performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. The remuneration generally includes salaries and
allowances.

During the Year, the Group’s PRC subsidiary had subscribed
to those basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, occupational injury insurance,
maternity insurance as prescribed by the Social Insurance
Law of the PRC, as well as housing fund schemes as
prescribed by the Regulations on the Administration of
Housing Fund.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits
are made not less than the local government’s minimum
requirements. The normal working hours for general
employees are generally 8 hours a day and 40 hours a week.
Integrated computation of working hours is implemented with
reference to the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

MR EE AR AR / 32023
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The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are
operated in compliance with the following laws and
regulations which have significant impact:

a. Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of
the Laws of Hong Kong);

b. Occupiers Liability Ordinance (Chapter 314 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

C. Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

d. Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong);

e. Construction Workers Registration Ordinance (Chapter
583 of the Laws of Hong Kong);

f. Regulatory Regime to which SE Macau is subject in
relation to Labour Matters in Macau;

g.  the Labour Law of the PRC (/R #E A R X MBI A EE);
h. the Labour Contract Law of the PRC, the Provisional
Regulations on Collection and Payment of Social

Insurance Premium (& (R BB E 1T1451); and

i. the Regulations on Management of Housing Provident
Fund (EE RIES BEIREA).

AEEBNBREEBEEETUTASR
BAFENERIER

a.  (EBHERD) (FEED E282

)
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583%F) :

L EAEPIRERS TEB TR0
EHIE

9. (hEARAMBLEE)

h.  (HEARRMBELEHARE) R
SREBEHMETERDD &

(EEAESERIED) -

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2023



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - -dERERHRE

Staff Composition

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed a total of 77
(2022: 68) staff, including operational office, sales and
marketing, and back office division. All staff members are
allocated in Hong Kong and the PRC.

(a)  Employee’s Employment Type Distribution

ABBER
20233 A31 8 AEBELEAT7TEE
T (20224 : 68%) ' BIEXEBMAE - 8
& MBIHEHBREZERAE - TEIHE
ABHDREBSARFE o

@) HEFEEE S5

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Employment type Male Female Male Female
EfRER Bt eg S g
Part-time staff 0% 0% 0% 0%
FBET
Full-time staff 79% 21% 75% 25%
2BET
Total 79% 21% 75% 25%
ny
(b)  Employee’s Age and Gender Distribution (b) HFEE S HESIERS
2023 2022
2023 2022 FF
Age Group Male Female Male Female
FHe AR Bt feg Eslis M
0-15 0% 0% 0% 0%
0% -1575%
16-18 0% 0% 0% 0%
165518 5%
19-30 12% 4% 21% 3%
1955 -30 5%
31-45 36% 8% 32% 13%
3175545 5%
46-60 29% 9% 21% 9%
46 5% —60 5%,
=61/>61 3% 0% 1% 0%
613%3A
Total 79% 21% 75% 25%
mE

MR EE AR AR / 32023

37



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

38

B2

(c)  Employee’s Geographical and Gender Distribution

€ ‘= E 58 ER LSS

2023 2022
2023 F 2022
Geographical Male Female Male Female
& Bt i S g
Hong Kong 58% 13% 56% 16%
BE
The PRC 21% 8% 19% 9%
#
Total 79% 21% 75% 25%
By
The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and AEBBEBEREIRBEBRY BE
caring environment to employees to raise their sense of FIRE WIS ASEEINGERET
belonging and work efficiency in the Group. TERUEK -
The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with RER AEBEEMmELEFRE RESRS
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant F TERME - RERE - #ens %
impact on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and Rt RIEEREMBENRFEEERR
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, OISR REBEMEANEREMNS -
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare of AN - RER - REERETETEBE
the Group during the Year. In addition, no non-compliance ERBHIEHE NS R HEHBORE -
with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant
fines or sanctions had been reported during the Year.
Employees’ Health and Safety B2 EEREREHEZZE

The management of the Group recognises that the
operational efficiency of an enterprise and the maintenance
of a healthy and safety working environment for all employees
are closely related. The Group continues to maintain a
healthy and safety working environment for its employees so
as to attract and retain talented employees which is in line
with established internal guidelines and systems of the
Group.

AEEEEERHICENSERTER
ERETAR - ERELENTIERES
IR - AEBEERETHEBRERR
2O THERE  ARSITEETAANEE
MEMAFEAEFRNEFET -
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The Group provides its employee with flexible rest leave
arrangement, medical and hospital scheme. The Group
understands that a good working environment for its
employees with a safe and comfortable working condition is
very important. A set of clear guideline of work arrangement
under typhoon and rainstorm warning had been formulated
by the Group for its employees to follow.

Occupational Health and Safety Data
The information of work accidents are set out below:

2023
2023
Health and Safety Male Female
BEREZE £z zit

AEBERETRHEBERNKSMERZEHE
BRELBEGTE - AEEBAQRE TRH
—flzE  FENTHEREFRFER - A
SECHIEAMNRR  RRES THER
g5l BB THILTTE -

BEEFHET2EN
THEERNERITRATR
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Male Female Male Female
M g 51 M

Rate of work-related fatalities -

E TIERBAR ML T B A K

Lost days due to work injury -
HAIBIELXTIEEH

During the Year, the Group had no non-compliance with any
laws and regulations on occupational health and safety.

Development and Training

Staff development forms an important aspect of the Group’s
human resources policy. The Group places a strong
emphasis on providing training to its employees to retain
appropriate and suitable personnel for its long-term
development.

The Group has committed to provide on-the-job education
and training to its employees in order to enhance their
knowledge and skills. All employees are encouraged to
enhance their skills and knowledge at every opportunity in
order to perform their current job more efficiently and
effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities
which may arise. During the Year, regular training courses
were provided to the employees included but not limited to
orientation training, technical training and quality training.

Performance evaluations are initiated annually. In order to
recognise the value in the skill and experience of the Group’s
employees, the Group has adopted a policy that any
promotions will be considered internally first before hiring any
outside staff. It is the Group’s policy to select the most
suitable candidate for appointment to a higher rank based on
merit, rather than on the seniority of the candidates.
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Labour Standard

The Group is fully awarded that child labour and forced
labour violate fundamental human rights, International Labour
Conventions and Recommendations and poses a threat to
sustainable social and economic development. Therefore, the
Group strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations.
The Group prohibits the hiring of child labour by reviewing the
actual age of the interviewee during the recruitment process,
including the examination of identity documents and detailed
records. The Group only carries out the requirements of
standard labour contract and does not adopt any means to
unfairly restrict the employment relationship between
employee and the enterprise by, for example, withholding a
deposit or identity documents.

For entry registration, all employees must present to the
Group valid documents as follows: (i) identity card and
vocational qualification certificate; (i) social security card; (iii)
medical or health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other
relevant information and documents. The above procedures
can ensure no child labour will be employed.

Being people-oriented, the Group has hosted various social
events and activities such as company trips and parties for
its employees with the aim of promoting work-life balance.

During the Year, the Group had no non-compliance with any
child labour and forced labour laws.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and
regulations that govern its business. The Group strives to
adhere to international best practices and conduct fair and
unbiased procurement processes when dealing with
suppliers.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and
implements the value of honesty, integrity and fairness in its
supply chain management. The Group’s procurement
procedures provide directions and guidelines on evaluation
and engagement when dealing with suppliers of goods and
services to ensure business is conducted with legally,
financially and technically-sound entities. In addition, approval
procedures are in place to ensure that supplier engagements
are monitored and approved by the appropriate level of
management.
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During the selection process of suppliers, the Group takes
into account such as its reputation, quality of services and
products, past performance and green elements.

When choosing a new supplier, the Group give priority to the
suppliers who are environmentally friendly and socially
responsible in order to promote and support environmentally
preferable products and services in supply chain.

Performance of suppliers impose direct impact on the
sustainability of the Group’s operation. The Group
implements the procedures on selection of suppliers strictly
to minimize both the environmental and social risks of the
Group’s supply chain. A systematic supplier management
mechanism has been set up to closely monitor the
performance of suppliers. As at 31 March 2023, the Group
has 63 major suppliers.

The geographical distribution of suppliers are set out below:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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BEFHEREE  AEEELEZEHRE
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A318 - AEEBIREEMHER -

R B D MEEE N TRAT

By Location 2023
Rt EE S 2023 F
Hong Kong 54%
B
China 40%
A
Korea 3%
FE T
Other countries 3%
HEMER
Total 100%
wm
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Product Responsibility

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer
satisfaction in terms of the products and services. Strenuous
efforts are made to ensure compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to product health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. The Group requires its
employees to comply with applicable governmental and
regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

Quality Control and Product Warranty

Instruction guidelines regarding product quality inspection,
return and repair of defective products have been set to
further ensure that the quality of our products are up to
standard and customers who have received verified defective
products can get their replacement. Upon receiving a
defective unit of a product, the unit is subject to different
procedures depending on the situation, which will be
accepted for exchange or repair if the customer can provide
valid purchase and warranty documents. Our customer
service team is responsible for monitoring and handling
customer complaints and a set of procedures have been
formulated so that complaints can be categorized and solved
by the designated staff timely.

Data Privacy Protection

The Group emphasises the importance of protecting and
safe-guarding its customers’ privacy, especially for money
lenders’ information. Thereby, the Group would be cautious
upon the collection, procession and usage of customers’
personal data in order to comply with the provisions of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group did not have any products
subject to recall and did not receive any compliant from its
customers in relation to either the quality of its services or
products. The Group had no non-compliance cases
regarding violations of relevant laws and regulations on
product responsibility and data privacy.
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Anti-corruption

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly prohibited.
The Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards of
conduct to which all employees are required to adhere in
order to promote the integrity environment in the workplace.

The management believes that the integrity of business is the
foundation of corporate social responsibility, as well as a
fundamental element for a business’s competitive advantage
and sustainability. The Group is committed to the highest
possible standards of openness, probity and accountability.

To combat corruption and to govern conflicts of interest,
unless with the Group’s approval, Directors and employees
are prohibited from accepting any valuable items from co-
workers, customers, suppliers or other stakeholders. Unless
with approval the Board, senior management members are
also prohibited from engaging in any activities that involve a
potential conflict of interest with the Group or may do harm
to the Group’s overall interests. Breaches are subject to
disciplinary actions, including termination of employment
contracts where necessary.

Various policies have also been formulated to accord with the
Securities and Futures Commission’s Guideline on Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter- Terrorist Financing,
including the basic procedures for customer identification
and due diligence, suspicious transactions report and record
keeping. Ongoing staff training has also been carried out to
ensure each of the employees is fully aware of these policies.

During the Year, the Group provide 40 training hours in
relation to anti-corruption to its staffs.

In the Year, there was no legal case concerning corruption
brought against the Group or employees.

Community Involvement

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and to maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities in
order to contribute to local development from time to time.

The Group strives to improve its social image and social
responsibility through community investment. All employees
of the Group are encouraged to participate in helping and
supporting the local communities and neighbours with their
own initiatives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability
and corporate governance are beneficial to the healthy growth of the
Group, improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the
interests of Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) as its own code and has complied with the CG Code for
the year ended 31 March 2023, except for the following deviation. The
Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate governance
principles and practices to ensure compliance.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Tony Yuen is the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company. In view that Mr. Tony Yuen is one of the founders
of the Group and has been operating and managing the Group since
June 1999, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group
to have Mr. Tony Yuen taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. Therefore the Board considers that the deviation
from the CG Code provision C.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings (the “Required Standard of
Dealings”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code and the Required
Standard of Dealings regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the period from date of the Listing to 31 March 2023.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, including four executive
Directors, two non-executive Director and three Independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline

Mr. Mui Pak Kuen

Mr. Hoi Cho Lung (Appointed on 10 January 2023)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella (Appointed on 10 February 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Billy

Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard

Mr. Wong Ching Wan (Appointed on 17 June 2022)

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience,
knowledge and execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out his
or her duties effectively and efficiently.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, one general meeting, nine regular ~ E ZE2023F3 831 A FEE B THEEEERAEE
Board meetings and other Board meetings were held in addition to EBE£T—ABREAE LAERESC SRR EMES
circulation of written resolution. Attendance record of these meetings are €& - @ HELSIIRIT ¢

shown below:

General Audit Remuneration = Nomination
Name of member REHA Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
BRRAE =g EREES ¥FHEES REZES
Number of total meetings =R 1 9 4 4 4
Number of Meetings BEHEgEZ
attended/Total BB BB
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wali, Tony P& st & 11 9/9 N/A3E A N/ATE F N/AT A
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline ESEa G 11 9/9 N/AiE A 4/4 N/A i
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen AL E 11 9/9 N/A 33 A N/A 3 A N/AiE A
Mr. Hui Cho Lung B E N/ATEA 1/9 N/ATE A N/ATE R N/ATEA
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph LR AE 11 9/9 N/A3E A N/ATE F N/ATEA
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella ZEELT N/ATNEA N/ATNEA N/ATNEA N/AiE A N/ATNEFA
Independent non-executive BYFHTESE
Directors
Mr. Chung Billy BEERE 11 9/9 4/4 4/4 4/4
Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard EEMRE 1l 9/9 4/4 4/4 4/4
Mr. Wong Ching Wan ITEERE 1/1 7/9 3/4 3/4 3/4

Note: Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella was appointed on 10 February 2023, Mr. Hui Cho [t : R2E 24+ 2023F2 A10BEE T - FFieExL AR
Lung was appointed on 10 January 2023 and Mr. Wong Ching Wan was 2023F 1 A10ABZAERTE T EHLAENR2022F6 17
appointed on 17 June 2022. AREE -
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THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management
company’s business and is collectively responsible for the Company’s
affair under the Board'’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should
make decision objectively in the interests of the Company

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the
Group’s strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(i) diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
(i) approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  dividend policy;

(v) material acquisitions and disposal;

(vi)  reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;
(vi)  monitoring the performance of the Management; and

(viii)  determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the
Board.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 18 January
2018. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board
that should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business
and compliance with policies. The composition and diversity policies of
the Board is reviewed annually and regularly. The Board should ensure
that its changes in composition will not result in any undue interference.
The Board members should possess appropriate professionalism,
experience and trustworthiness in performing duties and functions. The
Board would diversify its members according to the Company’s situations
and need. While participating in nomination and recommendation of
director candidates during the year, each member of the Board may
consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review the
policy concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy
or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report, including
any quantitative targets and standards and its progress with policy
implementation.

In 2023, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board and
considered the Board composition and diversity policy is appropriate.

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the chief executive officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to entering into any significant transactions by the above mentioned
officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and
making decisions on the following matters:

(i) implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the
Board;

(i) strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i)

closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance
with plans and budgets;

(iv)

putting adequate operational, planning and financial control
systems in place; and

v) managing the Group’s day-to-day business.

48

EEgdAARSTIEBE

B2018F1 A18H#E  ARAAEHEMEETE L TLiK
FoZBRRBABEBRESEZ UM A = LARE
Bt - KEIOE - BBRZITENESS LS EEE
EBHERUREER -EFSHERREZ T ELBREEF
REHIEN BEECREBEREAKNES BT SERT
ATNEENTE ZEFTeXNEAAHEAHIERS K
B REABITR S RBEE - EFEHREBERAA

WERAREELAKE - FR - SEFEHERREERK
HEEAEEREARAUZRE—RIEZEEE - BEET
FRAMER] - Fl - ERHEER  ABELR - UE
WMEZ LB BRARRISBEEBEREER -BF
CRENBBESSHREZITEHBER - WRDEES
RERBRRIBEBRE - SR TATEBZRIZEN
RBURHITERE -

R2023%F EFECENEFSZ IR AEETSH
M ZTCBREBEE -

EEE

ARRAREE TREREERRTITRARLSRE

BE(EER] - kOB EBEEREN - L
MERBEETEANEARSARSESSIAET AE

XN
)

EEENERBRESERATEEELZBIARK
()  ITESFGRLAAEBE R KRR

(i)  BIENEZES BRI REE TS

(i) RBEFEIREE - WOERLERMBRE

HIE R A EIE R EI R M TS B I

()

V) EEAEEAEERS-

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2023



Corporate Governance Report
B (o S0 4 4

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent non-executive Directors; and
at least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in
writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors were independent during 2023 since their respective date of
appointment.

All Independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all
corporate communications containing the names of the Directors by the
Company.

Mr. Tony Yuen (the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer and
an executive Director) and Ms. Jazzy Wong (a member of the senior
management) are spouse. Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen (an
executive Director) are siblings. Mr. Tony Yuen and Mr. Joseph Yam (a
non-executive Director) are brothers-in-law. Mr. Joseph Yam is a brother-
in-law of Ms. Jazzy Wong and Ms. Pauline Yuen, Ms. Jazzy Wong and
Ms. Pauline Yuen are sisters-in-law. Save as otherwise disclosed herein,
there is no family or other material relationship among members of the
Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the
businesses and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and
skills, and updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Directors provided their

FEEXRE

EREF(BEBYIIFNTES) EEMEREZRRA
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HEFEM  BRERMNABBRSHRIFEEE TR

E)Jiz::
Y/

BZE2023F3 A3 AILFE  EFHREZEY RK

training record to the Company in respect of their participation in training — ZH{EA LT AR EE 2 B KBS NEIEE (00 FE
activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and  #l5&) mAR RHREENAEE - FEBEWOT ¢
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are
as follows:
Reading Attending
materials the seminar
relevant to Attending relevant to
directors’ the seminar the skill of the
duties and provided by the Director’s
responsibilities Company position
HHEHESRHK HEEESERN
kBEEHA HEAAT BEEEREN
1 8 REHHATE mEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony EELELE v v 4
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline [TESEF o v 4 v
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen L bt v v v
Mr. Hui Cho Lung LR v 4 v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Yam Chu Fan, Joseph EBAELE v v/ v/
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella REEIL
(Appointed on 10 February 2023) (R2023%F2 F 10 HEZ(T) N/A 33 A N/A 36 A N/A 73 A
Independent non-executive Directors By FHITESE
Mr. Chung Billy EEERE v v v
Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard EEEE v 4 v
Mr. Wong Ching Wan BERL v v v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Tony Yuen is both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. In view that Mr. Tony Yuen is one of the founders of the Group
and has been operating and managing the Group since June 1999, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Tony
Yuen taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. The role of the Chairman is primarily responsible for
managing the Board, whereas the role of the chief executive officer is
primarily responsible for overseeing the various businesses of the Group.
Their respective roles and responsibilities are summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the chairman include: (i) leading the Board and
ensuring that the Board functions effectively and smoothly; (i) chairing the
Board and Shareholder’s meetings; (iii) approving the agenda for each
Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, any matters
proposed by the other Directors and the Company Secretary for inclusion
in the agenda; (iv) ensuring all Directors receive all relevant information
prior to each meeting and are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings; (v) ensuring all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely and constructive manner; (vi) encouraging all Directors,
including the independent non-executive Directors, to actively participate
in all Board and Board committees meetings and promoting a culture of
openness for the Directors to share and voice their concerns on all
matters during each meeting; (vii) ensuring good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established and followed; and (viii) taking
appropriate steps to provide effective communication with Shareholders
and to ensure that Shareholders’ view are communicated to the Board as
a whole.

Responsibilities of the chief executive officer include: (i) implementing the
Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board; (i) strategic planning of
different business and functions; (i) closely monitoring operational and
financial results in accordance with plans and budgets; (iv) assuming full
accountability to the Board for all aspects of the Group’s operations and
performance; (v) maintaining ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and the
other Directors; (vi) developing and leading an effective executive team;
(vii) putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems
in place; and (viii) representing the Company and managing the Group’s
day-to-day business.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All Directors are appointed for an initial term of three years and subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”). At each annual general
meeting, not less than one third of the Directors then in office shall retire
and every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Each executive Director, non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Director is appointed for an initial term of three years and
renewable for successive terms of one year each commencing from the
day next after the expiry of the then current term, subject to rotation,
removal, vacation, or termination of such office as set out in the Articles
or the disqualification to act as a Director under the Articles. Each
independent non-executive Director is further required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect his
independence and must provide an annual confirmation of his
independence to the Company.

All existing executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors are entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or
fee per annum respectively. The remuneration of each Director is subject
to the annual review of the Board with reference to his/her contribution in
terms of time, effort and his/her expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year are
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses
incurred during the performance of their duties to the Company and are
eligible for share options under the Share Option Scheme.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely, the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), all with specific terms of reference clearly
defining the powers and responsibilities of the respective board
committees. All board committees are required by their respective terms
of reference to report to the Board in relation to their decisions, findings
or recommendations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference (revised pursuant to a board resolution on 30 December 2022)
that are in conformity of the requirements of the CG Code which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Billy, Mr. Poon Wai Hung
Richard and Mr. Wong Ching Wan, and chaired by Mr. Chung Billy, with
all members being independent non-executive Directors in full compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, four Audit Committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 46 of this annual
report.

The role and functions of the Audit Committee include:

() Relationship with the Company’s auditor
(@ to consider and be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

(b)  to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences.
In connection, the Audit Committee shall:

° consider all relationships between the Company and
the external auditor (including non-audit services);

° obtain from the external auditor annually information
about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including those for rotation of audit
partners and staff; and

° meet with the external auditor, at least annually, in the
absence of the management, to discuss matters
relating to its audit fee, any issues arising from the
audit and any other matters the external auditor may
wish to raise;
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54

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
external auditor includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. When assessing the
external auditor’s independence or objectivity in relation to
non-audit service, the Audit Committee shall consider:

° whether the skills and experience of the audit firm
make it a suitable supplier of the non-audit services;

° whether there are safeguards in place to ensure that
there is no threat to the objectivity and independence
of the audit because the external auditor provides non-
audit services;

° the nature of the non-audit services, the related fee
levels and fee levels individually and in total relative to
the audit firm; and

° criteria for compensation of the individuals performing
the audit.

The Audit Committee should report to the Board, identifying
and making recommendation on any matters where action or
improvement is needed; and

to approve the policies on hiring employees or former
employees of the external auditors and monitoring the
application of these policies and consider whether there has
been or appears to be any impairment of the auditor’s
judgement or independence for the audit.
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(ii) Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

(©

R REERRA

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if
prepare for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.
It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to determine
the scope and extent of the review. The Audit Committee
may refer to relevant statements of auditing standards and
audited guidelines in relation to review of these reports for
guidance. In reviewing these reports before submission to
the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(2)  major judgement areas;

(8)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(5)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

regarding point (a) above:

(1) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and Company’s senior management and the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with
the Company’s auditors; and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, and it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditors.

to provide full details of any disagreement by the Audit

Committee with the accounting treatment adopted by the
Company.
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(iii)

56

Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control procedures

(@)

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee, or
by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and the internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in these terms of
reference and those set out in the code provisions as stated
in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules from time to time;
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(m)

to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters, and the Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

to act as the key representation body for overseeing the
Group’s relationship with the external auditor;

to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence,
with the audit committee about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Company;

to review the half-year report prepared by the Group’s
corporate guarantee committee on its work and information

relating to the provision of corporate guarantees; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

Major accomplishments in 2023 comprised the following:

(@)

reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a
quarterly, half-yearly and annually basis, where applicable;

reviewed the external auditor’s significant findings and
management’s response to the recommendation raised, if
any;

reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and
the adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting
function of the Group;

reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2023 and the letter of representation to be given by
the Board; and

considered and approved the 2023 external audit fees and
engagement letters.
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The Group’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by management.
With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system, during
the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had appointed McMillan
Woods Corporate Service Limited, as independent consultant, to review
the Group’s internal control systems and recommend actions to improve
our internal controls.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was effective and in compliance with the
requirements of the CG Code D.2.1 for the year ended 31 March 2023.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 and recommended approval to
the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with written
terms of reference (revised pursuant to a board resolution on 30
December 2022 to extend the duty of the Remuneration Committee to
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter
23 of the GEM Listing Rules) in accordance with the requirement of the
CG Code. The terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the one executive
Director and three Independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline, Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard, Mr. Chung Billy and
Mr. Wong Ching Wan, and chaired by Mr. Chung Billy.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, four Remuneration Committee

meetings were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 46
of this Report.
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The role and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i)

(i)

()

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

R REERRA

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Group and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to determine the policy and make recommendations to the Board
on remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to assess the performance of executive Directors;

to approve the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;
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(xi)  to form a view in respect of service contracts to be granted by the
Group under Rule 17.90 of the GEM Listing Rules that require
shareholders’ approval and advise shareholders (other than
shareholders who are Directors with a material interests in the
service contracts and their associates) as to whether the terms are
fair and reasonable, advise whether such contracts are in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
advise shareholders how to vote. An independent non-executive
Director who has a material interest in any such contracts shall not
sit on the Remuneration Committee;

(xi)  to consider the granting of share options to Directors pursuant to
any share option scheme adopted by the Company;

(xiii)  to ensure due compliance with any relevant disclosure requirements
in respect of the remuneration of Directors under the GEM Listing
Rules, the Companies Ordinance and any other statutory
requirements;

(xiv) to consult the Chairman of the Board and/or chief executive of the
Company about their remuneration proposals for other executive
Directors;

(xv)  to do any such things to enable to the Remuneration Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;

(xvi) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles or imposed by
legislation and the GEM Listing Rules;

(xvii) to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules; and

(xviii) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

Major accomplishments in 2023 comprised the review of matters relating
to the remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management. In 2023 and as at the date of this report, there has been no
material matters relating to the share option scheme of the Company
which required review or approval by the Remuneration Committee.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee with written terms
of reference (revised pursuant to a board resolution on 30 December
2022). The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in
conformity with the requirements of the CG Code and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Billy, Mr. Poon
Wai Hung Richard and Mr. Wong Ching Wan, and chaired by Mr. Chung
Billy.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, four Nomination Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 46 of this
annual report.

The role and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

(i) to formulate nomination policy for consideration of the Board and
implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

(i)  without prejudice to the generality of foregoing;

(@  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

(e)  to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors;

(] to adopt nomination procedures, process and criteria to
select and recommend candidates for directorship;

(9  todo any such things to enable to the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and
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(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Memorandum of Association and the Articles
or imposed by legislation and the GEM Listing Rules;

(i) in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered into by
any members of the Group with its Director or proposed Director,
which require the prior approval of the shareholders of the
Company at general meeting, to review and provide
recommendations to the Shareholders of the Company (other than
Shareholders who are Directors with a material interest in the
relevant service contracts and their respective associates) as to
whether the terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable
and whether such service contracts are in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole, and to advise
Shareholders on how to vote;

(iv)  to review the policy concerning diversity of the Board and the
measurable objectives for implementing such policy from time to
time adopted by the Board, and to review the progress on
achieving these objectives; and

(v)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
Major accomplishments in 2023 comprised the recommendation to the
Board the appointment of Mr. Hui Cho Lung on 10 January 2023 and Ms.

Leung Wai Hing, Ella on 10 February 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions which includes:

(i) developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the CG Report.
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Major accomplishments in 2023 comprised the following:

(i) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and made appropriate amendments;

(ii) arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

(i) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditor McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited and its
network firm to the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as
follows:

MR2028 FEKMEEZSHBE TIISIA :

() FIEAEEZAEERABRRRESR  WiELEE
1BET

(i) ZHEEREATEABNEIRBESERE
&

(i) WA ARFETEEER
EERHYKEE o

SAIMBRAREREE

B E R &

HE2023F3A3THILEFE  INEREMES (HE)
SHMSEEMERAR REBEKENAAEBREN
EZNGEEZRIEENAT

Services rendered HK$
REH RS BT
Audit services EIZRS
— Audit the consolidated financial statements of the — EBRAEEEHE2023F3A31HILFE

Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 ZEBMBHRER 550,000
Non-audit services IEBZIRTE 100,000
Non-audit services include review of quarterly and FEERELEENAEETEN

interim financial information of the Group R HRBT S B R

The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by B ZE2023F3A31BLFEZEREHERE (B

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited be re-appointed as the auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
Group’s financial statements to give a true and fair view. The
responsibilities of auditor in respect of the financial statements are set out
in the report of the auditor forming part of this Report.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

FHENEBAMARARES  HEHNENTREEREFK
BEW ERZEECRAEETIRENTREERREFK
G LERRS (BE) SHMEBMEARATD/RRERK
SRAD -

ESHUMBRBEE
EXHAREMREAAER D TR A KB 5 5H

KRB - RBERPBHRER 2 EERRZEE RS
FZMEBRAREN D

63



Corporate Governance Report
L s SO A

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control system
which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key risk exposures.
The Group’s system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfilment
of the business objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in
providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and Shareholders’ interests. During the year under review, McMillan
Woods Corporate Service Limited has reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and has provided written reports to
the Audit Committee.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line of
defence, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and
monitoring risk associated with each business or transaction. The
management, as the second line of defence, defines rule sets and
models, provide technical support, develops new system and oversees
portfolio management. It ensures risks are within acceptable range and
that the first line of defence is effective. As the final line of defence,
McMillan Woods Corporate Service Limited assists the Audit Committee
to review the first and second lines of defence.

The Group is committed to the identification, evaluation and management
of risks associated with its business activities through ongoing
assessment of a risk register, by considering the likelihood and impact of
each identified risk. The Group has implemented an effective control
system which includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, a sound management system and periodic review of the
Group’s performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Group regards periodic review of internal control system as an
important part of the Board’s oversight function. The Group has not set
up an internal audit function, however, the Group has engaged an
external consultant, McMillan Woods Corporate Service Limited, to
conduct review on the internal control system of the Group. The review
shall be conducted once every year. During the year ended 31 March
2023, a review has been conducted and the Directors considered the
internal control system of the Group to be effective and adequate.
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Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2023, covering the material
financial, operational and compliance controls, which are considered
effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience, training and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions on an annual basis.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view that in
light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group, as
opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate internal audit
department, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company
or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant information is
considered inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as
reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). The executive Directors have responsibility for approving
certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the Company
under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Company has put in place procedures on handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. The Company has appropriate internal control and
reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside information.
Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be conducted
by publishing the relevant information on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, according to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
For the year ended 31 March 20283, the Company Secretary was Mr.
Chou Chiu Ho.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Company Secretary are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Mr. Chou Chiu
Ho confirming that he took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2023. The Company is of the
view that Mr. Chou has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors, for Shareholders’
consideration and voting.

The following procedures for Shareholders of the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the
applicable legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
to require an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles; and

(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Apart from sending email to ir@primeintelligence.com.hk, Shareholders
may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them
to the headquarter and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong at Unit A, 6/F, TLP132, Nos. 132-134 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 2991
1110, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy, a summary of which is
disclosed as below.

Any amount of dividends of the Company will be at the discretion of the
Directors and will depend on, among other things, the Company’s trading
results, cash flows and financial condition as well as operating and capital
requirements. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of
dividends will be subject to the Company’s constitutional documents and
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, including the approval of Shareholders.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
by means of requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company was adopted by way of a special resolution
passed by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 10 August 2022. The second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company is available on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Group for the year is set out
in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year and analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators and
prospects of the Group’s business are provided in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 14 of the annual report. The discussion forms
part of this Director’s report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Details of segment reporting are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 163.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2023.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity” and note 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 March 2023
was approximately HK$18.0 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) when the Directors’ report prepared by the Directors is
approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles and association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 164 of the annual report.
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PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2023.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline

Mr. Mui Pak Kuen

Mr. Hui Cho Lung (Appointed on 10 January 2023)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella (Appointed on 10 February 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Billy

Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard

Mr. Wong Ching Wan (Appointed on 17 June 2022)

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE FORTHCOMING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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In accordance with the Article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai,
Tony, Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline, Mr. Chung Billy, Mr. Hui Cho Lung and
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella, shall retire from office as Directors by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony,
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline, Mr. Chung Billy, Mr. Hui Cho Lung and Ms.
Leung Wai Hing, Ella have agreed to offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen has entered into a service
agreement with our Company for an initial term of three years with effect
from the date of Listing and such service agreements have been renewed
for another year. Mr. Mui Pak Kuen has entered into service agreement
with our Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the 2
March 2020. Mr. Hui Cho Lung has entered into service agreement with
our Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the 10
January 2023. All of the said service agreements will be renewable from
time to time thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
prior notice in writing.

Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the date of
Listing and such letter of appointment have been renewed for another
year. Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella has entered into a service agreement with
our Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the 10
February 2023. All of the said letter of appointment or service agreement
has been or will be renewed from time to time thereafter until terminated
by not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

Mr. Chung Billy has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the date of
Listing and such letters of appointment have been renewed for another
year. Mr. Poon Wai Hung Richard has entered into a letter of appointment
for an initial term of three years with effect from 2 March 2020. Mr. Wong
Ching Wan has entered into a letter of appointment for an initial term of
three years with effect from 17 June 2022. All of the said letters of
appointment will be renewable from time to time thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save for disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 15 to 23 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long

positions

Ordinary shares of the Company

Number Percentage of the
of shares Company’s issued
Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) share capital
RHEE HADTE BT
o] SORERME (KiaE1) REZBD
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony Interest of controlled corporation 206,000,000 (L) 25.75%
(“Mr. Tony Yuen”) (note 2)
FrElfE S ([ D) (Mat2) TP EE R
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline Interest of controlled corporation 206,000,000 (L) 25.75%
(“Ms. Pauline Yuen”) (note 2)
R+ ([t ) (Mt 2) RS EEER
Mr. Hui Cho Lung Beneficial owner 39,100,000 (L) 4.89%

AHEREREL BEmEAA

Notes:

1.

Save

The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the
share capital of the Company.

As at 31 March 2023, Delighting View Global Limited (“Delighting View”)
directly holds 206,000,000 Shares. As Delighting View is beneficially owned
as to 85% and 15% by Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen respectively
and Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are parties acting in concert, each
of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen is deemed to be interested in all the
Share held by Delighting View under the SFO.

Delighting View and Primary Group International Limited (“Primary Group”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 19 April 2023 for the sale
and purchase of 206,000,000 Shares (the “Transaction”). As at the date of
this report, the sale and purchase of 66,000,000 Shares has been
completed. Accordingly, as of the date of this report, the number of shares
that each of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen is interested in with the
nature of interest of controlled corporation is 140,000,000 (long position),
representing approximately 17.50% of the Company’s issued share capital.
For details of the Transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 21 April 2023 and 12 June 2023.

as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the

Directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which

were

required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to Divisions 7 ad 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or

short

positions which each of them has taken or deemed to be taken

under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein;
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 and 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons, not being Directors or chief executive of the Company had, or
were deemed to have, interests or short position in the shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

FERREEMALTREDTRG REER D
SR KA

MR2028F3A31 B ' BEFMAME - TH AL (WIEE
ERARNAEEITHRABR) RIRG S AABEAR 5 P #EA ok
WRABRBIRIEES MR GHEXVIBE 2 35 &
NARARRFENESIAR  HALHENARFIR
BEF RS KRAIE 36 IEFTFEERMOERIAE
Y E SRR M SRR ERER TR EARR A
IR A S FIREREMAERIRANEE 5% sIA L

Long positions Sy
Ordinary shares of the Company ZNNTE= 3220
Number Percentage of the
of shares Company’s issued
Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) share capital
RHEE HARDTE BT
HE LB SO RERME (KiaE1) REZBDHE
Delighting View (note 2) Beneficial owner 206,000,000 (L) 25.75%
Delighting View (A7t 2) BEBEAA
Mr. Yao Han (“Mr. Yao”) (note 3) Beneficial owner 131,785,000 (L) 16.47%
whE s ([ 8k k%) (K777 3) BEmEA A
Ms. Jian Yanmei (“Ms. Jian”) (note 3) Interest of spouse 131,785,000 (L) 16.47%
Bt ([Brt])(Mit3) [inkiisteda
Notes: Biat -
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the 1. BNFH (L] REBRFEREQRIRAEANFE ©

share capital of the Company.

2. As Delighting View is beneficially owned as to 85% and 15% by Mr. Tony
Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen respectively and Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen are parties acting in concert, each of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Delighting View
under the SFO.

Delighting View and Primary Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement on 19 April 2023 for the sale and purchase of 206,000,000
Shares (the “Transaction”). As at the date of this report, the sale and
purchase of 66,000,000 Shares has been completed. Accordingly, as of the
date of this report, the number of shares that Delighting View is interested in
as a beneficial owner is 140,000,000 (long position), representing
approximately 17.50% of the Company’s issued share capital. For details of
the Transaction, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 21
April 2023 and 12 June 2023.

3. Ms. Jian is Mr. Yao’s spouse and is therefore deemed to be interested in all
Shares held by Mr. Yao under the SFO.

74

2. A 7 Delighting View 2 Bl Bt E Rt Z T B HH
85% &% 16% * Bt Rt TR —BITB AL « IR
BEAMBEEAREERRZEEERE AR
Delighting View FT #5756 H) P A i 19 S #Eas o

Delighting View £& Primary Group 74202344 A19H 5t &
# 206,000,000 & &5 ([R5 1) 5T B Eifas o IRAIR
EHHE - B5EAKE E66,000,000 887 o FIt - R AR
£ HE - Delighting View (fEAEZ#EA AN) AR
381 B /140,000,000 % (47 &) - #EERERRIEEHITR
KH)17.50% - BEAZRR ZHF1E - B2HAR R AHA
202344 21 H % 202346 A 12 B A/ o

3. ERLRREEZER  #REESFRMERIERES
R ERBERRERND T REAES

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2023



Directors’ Report

ESERE

Delighting View and Primary Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement on 19 April 2023 for the sale and purchase of 206,000,000
Shares (the “Transaction”). As at the date of this report, the sale and
purchase of 66,000,000 Shares has been completed. Accordingly, as of
the date of this report, the number of shares that Primary Group is
interested in as a beneficial owner is 66,000,000 (long position),
representing approximately 8.25% of the Company’s issued share capital.
As Primary Group is beneficially owned as to 100% by Ms. Ren Zixuan
(“Ms. Ren”), Ms. Ren is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Primary Group under the SFO. Accordingly, as of the date of this report,
the number of shares that Ms. Ren is interested in with the nature of
interest of controlled corporation is 66,000,000 (long position),
representing approximately 8.25% of the Company’s issued share capital.
For details of the Transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 21 April 2023 and 12 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Report, the Directors are
not aware of any other person, other than Directors and the chief
executive of the Company who had, or was deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company or options in respect
of such share capital.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporations” and
“Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, and save for the
reorganisation and the capitalisation issue as explained in the Prospectus,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2023 was the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries or its parent company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors and chief executives (including their respective
spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any of its associated corporation.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
by the then Shareholders on 18 January 2018 for the primary purpose is
to attract, retain and motivate talented participants, to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme include any employees, any executives,
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors),
advisors, consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme
was adopted, after which no further share options will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain
in full force and effect and share options which are granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue. The principal terms of which were
summarised in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus. No share option has been granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked
agreement that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing shares or (i)
requires the Company to enter into any agreement that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2023 or subsisted at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FERFRMER
Sales Purchases
HE i
The largest customer SAEP 9.1% N/A N3
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 36.4% N/A A3 F
The largest supplier BASER N/A 3 3 64.1%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAREERE AT N/ANE 81.3%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, to the best of knowledge of the
Directors, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact
on the businesses and operations of the Group.

DISCLOSURES UNDER RULES 17.22 TO 17.24 OF THE
GEM LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no circumstances which would give
rise to a disclosure obligation under rules 17.22 to 17.24 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND KEY RELATIONSHIP
WITH EMPLOYEES

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and key relationship
with employees is set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” from pages 24 to 43 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the
requirement of rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 January 2022, SE Engineering, being an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (as tenant)
with Brilliant Capital Resources Limited (as landlord) (“Brilliant Capital”)
for the term from 6 January 2022 to 5 January 2023 (and further
extended to 5 January 2024 upon renewal on 6 January 2023) at a rent
of HK$150,000 per calendar month. The premise has been used by the
Group as a workshop. Brilliant Capital was owned as to approximately
42.5%, 42.5% and 15.0% by Mr. Yuen Jackson Kwok Leung (“Mr.
Jackson Yuen”), Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen respectively.
Since Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Mr. Jackson Yuen are “family
members” as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and they
together owned over 50% of the total issued share capital of Brilliant
Capital, Briliant Capital is an associate of Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline
Yuen pursuant to Rule 20.10(2)(b) of the GEM Listing Rules. Therefore,
the entering into a tenancy agreement by SE Engineering (as tenant) with
Brilliant Capital (as landlord) constitutes a continuing connected
transaction.

Details of the above tenancy agreement of the Group are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, none of the Directors, the
Controlling Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) as at 31 March 2023 had any interest in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group or any other conflicts of interest with the Group.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Tony Yuen, Ms. Pauline Yuen and Delighting View (collectively
the “Covenantors” or each, a “Covenantor”), being the Controlling
Shareholders, has entered into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed
of Non-competition”) pursuant to which each of the Covenantors has,
among other things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken with the
Company (for itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries), on a joint and
several basis, that at any time during the period commencing on the date
of Listing and expiring on the earlier of (i) the date upon which the Shares
cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange; or (i) the date upon which the
Covenantors and their close associates cease to own 30% or more of the
then issued share capital of the Company directly or indirectly, such
Covenantor shall not, and shall procure that neither their respective close
associates nor companies controlled by the Covenantors (other than the
members of the Group) will (i) directly or indirectly, be interested in or
involved in or engaged in or acquire or hold any right or interest (in each
case whether as a director or shareholder (other than being a director or
shareholder of any member of the Group)) in any form of business,
including but not limited to any joint venture, alliance, cooperation,
partnership which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly
with the Group’s business in any area in which the Group carries or may
carry on business (the “Restricted Activity”) from time to time; nor
provide support in any form to persons other than the members of the
Group to engage in business that constitutes or may constitute direct or
indirect competition with the businesses that the Group is currently and
from time to time carrying on; (ii) solicit any existing employee of the
Group for employment by him/her/it or his/her/its close associates or
companies controlled by him/her/it; and (i) without the consent of the
Company, make use of any information pertaining to the business of the
Group which may have come to his/her/its knowledge for any purpose of
engaging, investing or participating in any Restricted Activity. Such non-
competition undertaking does not apply to holding shares of a company
which conducts or is engaged in any Restricted Activity provided that,
such shares are listed on a recognised stock exchange and: (a) the total
number of the shares held by the Covenantors and/or their respective
close associates (in aggregate) does not amount to more than 5% of the
issued shares of such company; and (b) the Covenantors and/or their
respective close associates are not entitled to appoint a majority of the
directors or management of that company. Details of the Deed of Non-
competition have been disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with
the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual
confirmation as part of the annual review process. In determining whether
the Covenantors had fully complied with the Deed of Non-competition for
the year ended 31 March 2023, the independent non-executive Directors
noted that (a) the Covenantors declared that they had fully complied with
the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31 March 2023; (b) no
new competing business was reported by any Covenantor for the year
ended 31 March 2023, and (c) there was no particular situation rendering
the full compliance of the Deed of Non-competition being questionable. In
view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Deed of Non-competition was complied with by all Covenantors
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

On 30 November 2015, Mr. Jackson Yuen has also entered into a deed
of non-competition with the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Jackson
Yuen has made similar undertakings to the Company as those given by
the Controlling Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages 44 to
67 of this annual report.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND STOCK SHORT
NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 16 May 2022, the Shareholders have approved to
change of the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company from * [E%
B EBAR AT to “BFEARHEEEBRRQF”. The English stock
short name of the Company for trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange will remain unchanged as “PRIME INTEL” and the Chinese
stock short name of the Company will be changed from “FE ZZ &5 48" to “If&
FETHE” for trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange with effect from
9:00 a.m. on 27 June 2022. The stock code of the Company on the
Stock Exchange remains unchanged as “8379”. Details of the above are
set out in the Company’s announcement in relation to the change of
company name and change of stock short name dated 22 June 2022.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Delighting View Global Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and Primary Group International Limited entered into a sale and purchase
agreement on 19 April 2023 for the sale and purchase of 206,000,000
Shares (the “Transaction”). As at the date of this report, the sale and
purchase of 66,000,000 Shares has been completed. For details of the
Transaction, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 21
April 2023 and 12 June 2023.

On 11 May 2023, the Company entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement (the “Strategic Cooperation Agreement”) with Yidian
Chengpin (Nantong) Network Co., Limited* ({2243 (F38) B4 B R A
A)) (“Yidian Chengpin”), a company established under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) which mainly operates the business
of e-commerce platform. Pursuant to Strategic Cooperation Agreement,
the Company and Yidian Chengpin will cooperate on various matters
including but not limited to research and development on application of
biometric identification technology, artificial intelligence technology, and
trading and logistic supply chain. The Strategic Cooperation Agreement
shall be effective for a term of one year. Details of the above are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 11 May 2023.

AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited has been appointed as the
auditor of the Company following the resignation of World Link CPA
Limited due to its reorganisation under which the audit engagement
director and the audit engagement team joined another professional
accounting firm with effect from 10 February 2020 and McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited was appointed to fill the casual vacancy.

A resolution to re-appoint McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held at 3/F, On Dak
Industrial Building, 2-6 Wah Sing Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong on Thursday, 10 August 2023 at 11:00 a.m. and a notice of
the 2023 AGM will be published and despatched in due course.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 June 2023
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M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PRIME INTELLIGENCE SOLUTIONS GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prime
Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

HREZSEHE

MREZFARREESNERH GBS NPREEAMT
BERNERZREENSTER -REFANESTERER
RAEVBBRREBUTKERSFRE  MESISHZ
SEERHBEYNER - BEOEE()FEMNEE ¢ &)
B S REGERNRER SR AREEENBREZEZR

opinion on these matters. We have determined (i) allowance for
inventories; and (ii) impairment of trade receivables to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter
BREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERPNAEERREREE

()
U

Allowance for inventories

FEARE

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4(g), critical
judgement and estimates in note 5(c) and its relevant
disclosures in note 20 to the consolidated financial
Statements.
BRMGEEREN T 49 FESFTHE
RAGET LA R B 5% 20 B9 1A BE 1% 7B A o

Ffaz 5(c) s #) BT

The Group had inventories with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$22,535,000 as at 31 March 2023 (after
related allowance of approximately HK$5,234,000 provided
as at 31 March 2023).

20233 A31H » ESREEAKREIFEL 22,535,000 T
B1F & (SRR 72 2023 F 3 A 31 AFHEA AR # #4) 5,234,000
HBITI&) ©

The Group operates in an industry where technological
development may significantly affect the valuation of
inventories as its products would become slow-moving or
outdated when products with new technology emerge.

wR EEEREMETENLE  MRERSHTFRMEER
HRETE BNMRERER  HERMBFHNIBEREE -

The estimation of the allowance for inventories requires
management to make judgements based on these
inventories’ ages, obsolescence, future sales plan, estimated
net selling prices as well as inventory disposal plans. Actual
sales are likely to be different from those estimated or
forecast since anticipated events sometimes do not occur as
expected and unforeseen events may arise, and their impact
on estimates and forecasts may be material.
ERERAENZEFTENRR RERE - RREEE
EEFEBURFELEEELHE - UA2EEFE
R - BRIHERFTALEZF AT HIEAAR - ThER
TRE AR N INTE B B A R AT RE B AR TR AT AN S 1 -
MmESE RN TERIEBERX -

MR EE AR AR / 32023

Our procedure in relation to net realisable value determination
as well as allowance assessment of inventories carried out by
the management included:
EEFHAEEERRNI SR FEETURTERET
HHRF B

— Reviewing the ageing of inventory;
- BERGFERK:

— ldentifying and assessing aged and obsolete items of
inventory while attending the physical inventory count;

— ZHEBERGFESREE  BPINAEZEMREFEER
B

— Assessing the Group’s internal control over the
inventory provision in particular the Group’s policy on
allowance for slow-moving and outdated inventories;

—  FHh EREUGEREONIES - LHE 8%
EEE N REF SO EBECR

—  Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness of
the methodologies adopted by the management in
determining the net realisable value for those slow-
moving and outdated items of inventory; and

— HEEREETZEREIREFREEERIFE
M ENaBEIEREET &

—  Reviewing the subsequent sales to corroborate the
assumptions used by the management.
— BREBHEUSETEREGAOMRE -
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BREREE EEEERTNNEEREERER

() Impairment of trade receivables

() EZERGEYHE
Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4(w), critical
judgement and estimates in note 5(d), financial risk
management in note 6(b) and its relevant disclosures in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRRGEHERERN 4 w) EZEFTHE - 1173 5() B5E+]
B RAaaT ~ BTat6(0)8 %R BRI iE21 I iaR 17 5 F A -
During the course of business, the Group would grant credit  Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
terms to its customers ranged between 30 to 90 days. The assessment of trade receivables included:
Group would perform periodic assessment on the impairment &% A E 5 EKWZIBEREFHNFZEF I
of trade receivables by basing on information including credit
risk characteristics of each customer, historical ageing and —  Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
timing and amount of recovering outstanding balances, and control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers —  FHE{EEEH - WEEELEHREEBEGTN@E
and forward-looking information that may impact its AEBIEHIFRET © B MBIER R
customers’ abilities to repay the outstanding trade
receivables in order to estimate the expected credit losses —  Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
(“ECL”) for the impairment assessment. models by examining the model input used by
REBBIEHR BEEERHTFETI0ZENHMHEE management to form such judgements, including
He BXEERBEBRSEPNEERREE - BAKRRREE testing the accuracy of the historical default data,
o8 - HEAEMR - THEUE R EREROR R SR evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
MEABREEFNFERHIBFREMEYERRFPEENAERE appropriately adjusted based on current economic
B O RBGRIENENNRTEHRERSER  HEZRWFEN conditions variables and assumptions used in each of
RE#EITE B - MAFHREANEREEBE (G the economic scenarios and their probability weightings
BEE]) - and assessing whether there was an indication of

management bias when recognising loss allowances;
Due to impairment of trade receivables under the ECL model —  &Ei@% % E 1R B A FME L H8RE ) 6 a0 18 e A BUE T
involved the use of significant management judgements and f ESEBEHREEBEEXNEGEE  EPEH
estimates, we considered this as a key audit matter. HABEERNBBEOERY FHBETEERRERE
ERTEHEEEREX THNE SRR BERES RERE EASARANFATERZRSLBEER TMANRE
REBEHE LG MESRA/UTIRAREREIE - RE#MELEETEAZHE MRS ENRETR
ERENEIABBRRBEREARR

—  Re-performing the calculations in the ECL model;

—  EETEAGEEEEEANE

— Inspecting settlements after the financial year end
relating to the trade receivables as at 31 March 2023;
and

— RUMERFEAREBREN2023F3IAZIENESE
WRRIEMRBREEER + &

—  Reviewing the appropriateness of the disclosures made
in the consolidated financial statements in relation to
the Group’s credit risk exposure.

— EENTEHRGAMBRETAELER S%5EE
ERRREERMNREMT -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the Company’s
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

Htp&ER

EXARHEMERAERE HMBENRE BERFF
R BRAR S TS IRR KB S Rb It B A9 AR BRAm o A SN
BT HE R o

EFHEEMBERRFEHNERL RAREELMERN RE
ENHEAE R BEREMPAAZE SR

RESERGAPBHREAME  EENEERAMELM
BE G RiMZREMENRDEGEPBRRIIFTEN
ERBARTRENENFEENER  IUFFEEX
HEERIRM - EREZFCHITHIIE  MESR AU EM
EMERBEAHERRL  EEEAREZEFE - E5
I AR FIR AR

ESRERZEENGAMBRRAREN

BT

EX0ERBEERSTMASEM BB BRELED
MEBRAMGI 2 HERTE  REEBLRBER AR ZE
EBHmE  YEEEERRMREGFAMBHRERME
BULENERANEE  BRGaVBRR I FEAR
HEFa AR M G R E A R -

EREFAVBHRRE  EFAEE EEEREL
B YRBEEBELEAENER(ER) &
BIFEEEER EKEBRAFILZE L2
WEEMERASENINE - DAEEARAAFERLS
REWNGEHE

ERZEEWHESTRETEE
MR -

BEEENPBRERE

85



Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

MR EE AR AR / 32023
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number: PO6633

24/F., Siu On Centre
188 Lockhart Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 21 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEEkEMEZEIER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHBE2023F3 A3 HIEFE

2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 &
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE FET FHET
Revenue & 8 43,151 48,952
Cost of sales and services rendered SHE R BIRHRIA AR (30,143) (32,284)
Gross profit EF 13,008 16,668
Other income HAUgA 9 1,497 122
Selling and distribution costs SHE KD HH A (9,639) (7,158)
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 B } E fth 4% 4 B &% (28,675) (32,621)
Impairment loss of trade receivables B 5 R IE R EREE (96) (46)
Loss from operation REKE 2EE (23,905) (22,935)
Finance costs U AN 10 (119) (106)
Loss before tax BREL AT E 18 11 (24,024) (23,041)
Income tax expense FriSBiFX 12 (132) (146)
Loss for the year attributable to KATEREE AEMN
equity owners of the Company FREE (24,156) (23,187)
Other comprehensive income for FREMEEEE - HIRHE !
the year, net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: FJFEE# S IEE 1872 EE -
Exchange differences on translating HEGINETRIE 2 EH =58
foreign operations (406) 141
Total comprehensive income for AAFEREEAEGEFEAZA
the year attributable to Wiz 48 K8
equity owners of the Company (24,562) (23,046)
Loss per share (HK cents) SREE (GB)
— Basic and diluted — BEARREE 15 (3.0) (2.9)
R EE AR AT / F302023 89



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R R

At 31 March 2023
120233 431 H

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 &
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FHET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MERE 17 556 -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 - -
Intangible assets B EE 19 - 2
556 -
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 20 22,535 21,961
Trade receivables B SRR IE 21 10,580 11,403
Other receivables, prepayments Hip U GRIE - AR RERES
and deposits 22 3,421 2,427
Tax recoverable AU [E R IR 69 348
Bank and cash balances RITRIB S 23 17,868 36,879
54,473 73,018
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables S ENKIE 24 2,384 791
Other payables and accrued expenses HihER B R EETER 25 5,138 4,010
Lease liabilities HEEaE 26 2,075 1,268
Contract liabilities X ON=Kr- 27 7,938 7,147
17,535 13,216
Net current assets REEERE 36,938 59,802
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBER 37,494 59,802
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 1,977 122
Contract liabilities BREE 27 921 522
2,808 644
NET ASSETS BEEFE 34,596 59,158
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2023
720233 431 H

2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 &
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FHET FHT

Capital and reserves BARRHE
Share capital [N 30 8,000 8,000
Reserves i 32 26,596 51,158
TOTAL EQUITY i 34,596 59,158

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 June 720234 6 A 21 B4 & E it f MR T3 -

2023.
Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline
B B 12 =g

MR EEBR AT / £ 2023
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Consolidajted Statement of Changes in Equity
mERGBER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE2023F3A31 HIEFE

Foreign Retained
currency profits/
Share Share Merger Legal translation (accumulated Total Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) reserve equity
RERH/

BA B EE AR AERE MBAERE  (RHER) BiRE fags
(note 32(c)(i)  (note 32(c)i)  (note 32(c)fii)  (note 32(c)(iv))
(HrEE320))  (HaE20))  (Wats2e)i)  (Hats2c))

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEL TATL FAL TAT TATL FhEL TAT TATL

At 1 April 2021 R2021 4 A1R 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 (151) 5,582 74,204 82,204
Loss and total comprehensive income  FREERZE

and changes in equity for the year WREE eSS - - - - 14 (23,187) (23,046) (23,046)
At31March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R 20223 A31 R

R202%F4A18 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 (10) (17,605) 51,158 59,158

Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZENGEHE

income and changes in equity UREREE

for the year - - - - (406) (24,156) (24,562) (24,562)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3A31A 8,000 51,682 17,079 12 (416) (41,761) 26,596 34,596
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHBE2023F3 A3 HIEFE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI E R (24,024) (23,041)
Adjustments for: AT SHEELAR
Interest income FEWA (82) (33)
Amortisation s = 21
Depreciation of property, Y - BB MR EITE
plant and equipment 272 743
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE - 1,016
Finance costs RIDIN 119 106
Impairment loss of trade receivables Z 5 RUGRIBRERE 96 46
Impairment loss on property, WME - BE KRB REEIE
plant and equipment 742 5,499
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEERERE 4,601 825
Allowance for inventories FERBE 1,884 2,492
Gain on disposals of property, HEYE  BE MEEKE
plant and equipment (35) -
Operating loss before working HEESEYRIKEHE
capital changes (16,427) (12,326)
Increase in inventories FEEM (3,004) (1,289)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables Z SRR D, () 649 (1,875)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, H WA - BBANRIER
prepayments and deposits e (M) R (1,008) 70
Increase in trade payables H 2 e FRIE R N 1,778 230
Increase in other payables HtENZRIERESER
and accrued expenses AN 1,158 333
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities EHa’EEm CRd) 1,190 (58)
Cash used in operations KEAE S (15,664) (14,915)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid) BIRE (B EFEFEH 147 (627)
Interest on lease liabilities HESENE (119) (106)
Net cash used in operating activities e EEFAR S FE (15,636) (15,548)
MR R EE AR A E / F382023 93



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE2023F3A31 HIEFE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B EB¥¥ - = k& E (1,570) (5,146)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME BELREMSHE
plant and equipment 35 -
Interest received LSS 82 33
Net cash used in investing activities WEESHMARS T8 (1,453) (5,113)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Principal element of lease payments HENRAEID (1,899) (1,642)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEFTAIR & %5 (1,899) (1,642)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERASEENRDFE
EQUIVALENTS (18,988) (22,303)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes P RSB R 2 (23) 10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FINEEeRREEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 36,879 59,172
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNESRREEEY
END OF YEAR 17,868 36,879
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RERESEBUWHNIW
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIB S 23 17,868 36,879
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHBE2023F3 A3 HIEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempt company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2015. The address
of its registered office is P.O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is located at Unit A, 6/F, TLP132,
Nos. 132-134 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 14
February 2018 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are sales of biometrics identification
devices and other devices and accessories and provision of
auxiliary and other services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which in collective term includes all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“‘HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are discussed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 below provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

MR EE AR AR / 32023
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(@

96

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily

effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April

2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulffilling a Contract

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

Merger Accounting for

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5 Common Control

Combinations

The above amendments to HKFRSs effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 April 2022 do not have a material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statement.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3. HAHIRKBEEBHBHEED (E)

(continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMEERERVFHITREBITEE
effective B R 2B
The Group has not early applied any new and revised AN [ 3 £ 1R R FE A (R ] B AR R (B R 2022
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for F4 A1 BB REE M REBRRFET
the financial year beginning 1 April 2022. These new and REETBEBMBMEER - ZFHMT R
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant LUSE] BB M EER B IE A T A e B
to the Group. REBEAHIER o

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTEHS 2%

BB S HEENR

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BB ERE 1R (BITR) — BEESBEARB SRS

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

BRI ERFE 1R UBITAR) —BRENERBEE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

BEEAERE 1R REBUNBRELAEHRWESE 25 (BEIAR) — SFTEHRRE

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates

EBGHERIE ST (BETAK) — BFtATNES

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction

BEEAERE 12 (BRI AR) — BE-—XHEENEENA EHEBRELTHEA

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback

EEMBHEEIE 1658 (E514) — ERHARMNHEEARE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

EEMBHREEIFE10FRNEBSALERIE 285 (BFIAR) — REFEAME N EL
AEPEZMNEEHEITE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

1 January 2024
20241 A1H
1 January 2024
20241 H1H
1 January 2023

20231 HA1H
1 January 2023
20231 H1H
1 January 2023

202341 A1H
1 January 2024

20241 A1H
To be determined

fFE

1 January 2024

BAREEST (20205 ) MK MEMZES] — BERAHSHRERKEREHRE 20241 H1H
EHERN S

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of AREE E IR IRV IE BB RT AR R /] E AR

what the impact of these amendments and new standards is VX ERBENERTE - 25NERA

expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has TN SAEET AR R AT E BIN K AT e 1 47

concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a EMBRRERERATE -

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

MR EE AR AR / 32023
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4.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 March. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting year as that of the Company.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until
the date when such control ceases.
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ML EETIAT -
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BHREDHRERARFTEROREFERE -
MBARKMEERERTZELSRE I
HREAAEBRMOBE - - HEAR
EASERHINER ZSA5ERBLH

BEMAEATZRGNRAKRKZTEIE
Bl WEHEENERAUZEERNENY
BZERR NEBREHZES - §4
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TEEREH (AIHERENRREFERY
LMEY)  AEEHZERERES -

FERME R G A EGIERN  NREEEEE
BEFOREAREAM T A NEEROR
B OUETHELRENE - REERE
ABEBRENTEERENE - TZEE
TEFRIRAE o

MEAREAEERGENZEZ ARES
AR YHESS NREEESERLEE
HAL -
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4,

R REERRA

(@

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary determined on the date
when control is lost; and (i) the carrying amount of the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

All intragroup transactions, balances, unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

Al / F£%%2023
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

()

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investments. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

(i)

R REERRA

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of the
net investment in foreign entities are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified to the consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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4.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in the profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Furniture and fixtures
Biometric identification devices
Motor vehicles

Computer equipment
Leasehold improvement

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The
gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be whether finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet
these criteria is expensed when incurred. With respect to
staff costs incurred directly attributable to solution service
income, it will be regarded as cost of sales and charged to
profit or loss of the Group accordingly.

Software development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
not exceeding five years, commencing from the date when
the software are put into commercial production.
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104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets, which for the Group are primarily office
premises. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the lease liability. After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the group entities, which do not have recent third-party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

106

U]

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is
not originally provided for in the lease contract (“Lease
Modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease.
In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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R REERRA

(9)

(h)

U]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis and
comprise all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost of
conversion and other costs that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale. When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period of write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
recognised as an increment in the amount of inventories and
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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4.

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

— Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses (“ECL”), interest
income (calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

110

0

(k)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for credit loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

(m)

(n)

()

(P)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flow. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

4. FEEFEEE)

U]

(m)

(n)

(0)

()

RERREEEY
RekReEBEMEERTRERFER
£ RITEHMSBEBATHRFR - U
MEARBR=(AA A2 HAERFELHBESE
AR RFEFEANEELIRARNEH
BAERE ARERBEELBRAS
EReEEMNERE - BONRITEIIR
FEREREBRARIEREEIAESEE
MEs  ReRREeEBYNABEEES
1BE F AT -

TREERESTA
CRABRERSTADREMITLANE
HOANBTRBBYBHREENETSREA
BENERTANERDE - R TADE
PARNEMREMAABRBTIAREEE
BRI RSN TR L - TXEIIBLIFE
SRBENRERT AN GTEE -

B 5 REMEARIE
BHREMENRENSEZRITFEIE
HERBEBRMNERBHEAATE K
FFRBEEEM - RUBERT - BIBAA
S8R

ERTAE

BaTEAEFRE —BRAENFSRER
(IOREMBEEEE)NEMEL - KA
FresrTmEs TERDWAMSRIENRE
BBITRANEE -

W R R B AR A

WENE MR EGREE TEPE
TR EAREE TR YA ERER A A
RE TEERE=ZJFKRDRNEE - Wi
PEREVKEMBEER - BRI MA
BEEHM -

111



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE2023F3A31 HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

112

(p)

(q)

Revenue recognition and other income (continued)
Revenue from the sale of biometric identification devices,
security products and other accessories is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been delivered to the buyer’s specific location (delivery).
Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers are
entitled to a one-year maintenance. At the point of sale, a
contract liability and corresponding adjustment to revenue is
recognised, representing the unfulfilled performance
obligation of the maintenance services. The contract liability
would be recognised as income on a straight-line basis over
the warranty period.

Revenue from provision of solution, installation and other
services are recognised when the relevant services are
rendered and delivered to customers.

Revenue from maintenance services are recognised on a
straight-basis over the term of the maintenance period.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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4,

R REERRA

(q)

U]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(t)

114

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

4. FEEFEEE)

(s)

(®)

BUF#BY
EARERBAKEKETEMMGNR
AU B L BT BY B - S TERR BT B

MEARECELERNEDEERES
R iR R R B AR RA -

BiIE
FiS Bt s BN EATE A FORAE TR IR 2 4858

EVHA FE N B IR TOAR ¥R 5 9 2 JE AR W M 5t
B RPN ENIERANERNENE
FiRE - TR ET B EE M E A ER
Bk AT R AKX IEE - BRI E
EBARVXTAMRIER - AREEH
BBz B ERANBER RO ET
HEECDETZBRERGH -

BERBNEERAVBBRRNEERE
{8 2 MR (B B 5% R R AR B AT & 2 A
MEZEZE - BRERAAG-RIZMEE
RBEREZEERIAR  MELERBEE
& 7E T8 MR M SRR A AJ (R E 4R 38 7T T 40
HMERZE  APAREBEIKRDEH
ERRREIAR MEREZREOARE
FERER T T EREAVGEN L EEN
ZRB(EBEHRINHZEMBEERE
EmMEL AT emRAEHEERERE -

RMBRARZRAEMES Z ERBE R =
HHMRRELCHARE  EHAEEAE
BT EEEE YIRAZEREES
PNEER KRB LERI

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHBE2023F3 A3 HIEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(v)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

v)

R REERRA

Related parties (continued)
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal
of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst
the other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent
increases in the recoverable amount caused by changes in
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Al / F£%%2023

4. FEEFEEE)

(u)

v)

B (%)
B) (HFFE THIEMRMEM - BNEEEEARE
EHRAE : (&)
(i)  RAA)FTHEIATHZERE
ﬁ?ﬁ%jmﬁ;zéi‘aa(%z
FENERAF)EZEEENX

\
A

(vl ﬁl""ﬂﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁ’]"ﬂ%
HEREEABRBHERS
HATB S BN EMKE AR

FEREERE
FEMEENREENS RS BETR
N R ERERREERE WREEHE

ERE - ABBARE Ban RS HEMRE H
fhEtAT M E €% - MRS EAM - ATl
Cl&HEIREHEERR  RIEZEETRE
ERER FBUREMEENEEMAME

ERRERA c BERERT - AT Z
BEMBNRELEMNAWEEEE -
AREeEAEEEENRGESLBEN 2
FEREERERFERDERNAMERZ
BaE o

EREEREE, /REEEEMMMEFR
KEZRENRE - REEBRRERER
FaﬁFTE&iéfE/fﬁi\Eiﬁ f(EFtERE)
R E BB B R AT TR R AT A

ReELBENNREBERE LI BESE
I mEE  BREVIDESRERSESL
BUMEMEE - RN AT RS GEN
H AL AT U [0 5 5848 0 42 P 8% (O] ) ORL (B 2R At
A -

117



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE2023F3A31 HIEFE

4.

118

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL measured at
amortised cost such as trade receivables. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

R REERRA

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks
and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Al / F£%%2023

4. FEEFEEE)

(W)

TRIEERE (&)
Egﬂwﬁgﬁw

RGBT ANEERR 8 VT HERR
EEE%%%M'$%I5%$@IE%
HEAHREONEREZ /T AR
FHABHHAZONERLR - AEH
BT AR SERAERAKRENENE
LREMER SRE2ZEEKERNERAR
B0 BRI KA RSB AT &
ﬂ°%A%%%ﬁ%ﬁ§ﬂ@%%é@%
ERBRE  RONE - BUSHKE - HH
@E&E@%M%%%@E$%@E%A
FRIQEITEMARRAR - UREERAE
B E2EBHEBNERRBEALCEERD
RRISNER AR

FHEERRETAVLSER
EEATER:

BEmE
VAR B B 1L IR

. SR TAMNI(IE) XA EE
SRR BERSEMERERL ;

. AEemT ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ&%%%m%
=5

“T'é(: kﬂ\@

. 1% 2RIQERER X INIA
HBBRANEE  WRBEEBAD

BERFEEENEE TR

. EBAMEE XS
B

BER ERIEHES

. BRMEREHANEM ST ANE
B EREIE A ;

. EBAEHOES  @EREAES
EEB L RAEHGBEEATHE
B SRESANEGEEERE
T -

119



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE2023F3A31 HIEFE

4.

120

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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4.

122

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future
by default date determined based on historical trend, the
Group’s understanding of the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

)

)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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5.

124

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(@)  Impairment loss for property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining whether
an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the
asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in
use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

@

(b)

()

Impairment loss for property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
31 March 2023 was approximately HK$556,000 (2022: Nil).
Right-of-use assets and intangible assets were fully impaired
at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

During the year, impairment for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$742,000 (2022: HK$5,499,000) and HK$4,601,000
(2022: HK$825,000) were charged to profit or loss
respectively.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

During the year, income tax of approximately HK$132,000
(2022: HK$146,000) was charged to profit or loss based on
the estimated assessable profits.

Allowance for inventories

Allowance for inventories is made based on the ageing,
change in the market conditions and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the allowance
amount involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of inventories was
approximately HK$22,535,000 (2022: HK$21,961,000).

During the year, allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$1,884,000 (2022: HK$2,492,000) was charged to profit
or loss.
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3 A31 BRERE °

FR - WE BERSEARMEAEEE
BB D Bl #742,000% JT(20224F ¢
5,499,0007% 7T ) }.4,601,0005# 7T (20224 :
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Fris#
AEBEZERZREABNAER - K
EEMSRBERAFELHEANMGS - AE
EBBREPERER S NFETLAMM
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5.

126

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)  Impairment of trade receivables
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss of trade receivables under ECL model based
on the credit risk of trade receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$10,580,000 (2022:
HK$11,403,000), net of allowance for impairment under ECL
of approximately HK$697,000 (2022: HK$601,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally
denominated in HK$, Renminbi (‘RMB”), Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) and Great British Pound (“GBP”). The Group has
certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of respective
Group’s entities such as United States dollars (“US$”),
European dollars (‘EURO”) and RMB.

5. BHBHAEREZRME (H)
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ENMBEBRMEYRE - ARBEERELR
B KAEBERENEHME T - A
AIREELERERE -

MR2023F3A31IH BESEIKKERE
B # /A&10,580,000/%8 Jr(20224F :
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the risk
of movements in exchange rates between HK$ and US$, and
HK$ and MOP to be insignificant since the HK$ is pegged
against the US$ and MOP is pegged against HKS.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed on the
movements in exchange rates between HK$ and US$; and
HK$ and MOP. The management is of the view that the
effect of foreign rate measurement between HK$ and EURO
would be insignificant. Whilst, the sensitivity analysis of the
Group’s foreign currency risk exposure in respect of RMB is
set out below:

6.

B EEEE (&)
(@ SRR

ARBEZRE MBI EITHE -
iR P #E E B T - BT AR TTRB T
SOBPIHS O E R BB R B E A - BEuk - I
8 T S e T BB T R P O fE R
PETHRESNT - EEERR  BHAE
BTz RERAENZELTERK « AW -
AL B B A R A 5 R B 0 BURR R
DWHEZMT

Functional Increase/

currency (decrease) in

strengthened/ consolidated

(weakened) by loss after tax

EEEW BRBEKREESR

FE/(BE) 2,/ (R2)

HK$'000

THT

Year ended 31 March 2022 HZE2022F3A31HIEFE 5%/(5%)  16/(16)Nete (i)
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE2023F3A31HLFE 5%/(5%)  18/(18)MNote) (i)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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6.

128

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Company considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 1 month
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral or other credit enhancements from
customers.

The Group has limited concentration of credit risk as it has a
large number of customers.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivable at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HXEKRERE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERRE)
Trade receivables (continued) B 5 REW A ()

TRIBENR2023FE3 31 HHAEEE 5
EUFBEERR KBHEEBEER

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at
31 March 2023:

2023

2023 &
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEREE BREAAE EERE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
FH T THET
Current (not past due) BIEA (A7 E) 0.3% 4,632 12
1-90 days past due wWHEI1 =90 H 0.4% 1,725 7
91-180 days past due #EI91 =180 H 3.2% 967 31
More than 180 days past due  #IEf#E:E 180 H 16.4% 3,953 647
11,277 697

2022

2022 F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
8 B g 1E RE4E R
% HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Current (not past due) BNER (R ER) 0.3% 2,632 8
1-90 days past due #HI1 =90 H 0.5% 3,407 18
91-180 days past due #EFO1 =180 H 1.2% 1,645 19
More than 180 days past due  #HiEB:E 180 H 12.9% 4,320 556
12,004 601

ETEEEDERBENEEARESH
NATBEMNENRMGFREBAREI S
EH KA A HIRTIE I ERHERT -

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

MR EEAIR AT / £372023 129



Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR AR B AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE2023F3A31 HIEFE

6.

130

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HXEKRER (&)
Credit risk (continued) (b) EERRE)
Trade receivables (continued) B S REWE (E)
Movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables during FRESHEVEBERHSHNT :
the year are as follows:
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FHET
At 1 April R4A1H 601 555
Impairment losses recognised for the year 4 A HESR R G 6518 96 46
At 31 March M®3HA31H 697 601
Other receivables and deposits AMERARIZS
For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the REMERRIERESME ~NAAES

()

Company make periodic individual assessment on the ECL of
these balances based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also qualitative and quantify the information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information
and concluded that there were no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and therefore, the Group
assessed the ECL to be immaterial.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s lease liabilities bear interests at fixed interest
rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits. These bank deposits bear interests at floating
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of
reporting period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

At the end of reporting period, the Group assess the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk to be insignificant and
thus no sensitivity analysis is presented.

(c)

REESEECE  BELR  HZREH
HENFEMEEEIRETERERFMG - R
¥¢é£§&3‘i%%ﬂfé'\t{;§ﬂﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬂrtﬁi'\‘f{
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GRS
o S A EREE R
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C At

A S T e I BB SR 5 4R 1T 3 - 34
%R A B R (T TR B L B
ESER

B bl Hh - AR E R RS BRI R A A
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MEBAR EBIRTISH RS
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HXEKRERE (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (d REBELER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and N &R B /) BUR & 5E B B IR B K FE R Y 7R
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HESFE - DABRELER T UENEH
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in ERRREE ST RAESHE -
the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRETFAEECRBENST RS BHRY
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the Group’s BRTENIEER  DERRIFRER
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows 2 (PRERE AR R (FE)) ks B
(including interest payments computed using contractual BIEAFI R A E O F B RAEE A % 2
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting KEATHRE BHEL o
date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based ERGHNARUERBRERENLIEERE
on contractual undiscounted cash flow is as follows: BEBRITOT :
Less than Between Between
On demand 1year 1and2years 2andb5 years
RER DPR1E 182F 2E5%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET TET THET
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H
Trade payables B S ENFA = 2,384 = -
Other payables and accrued Ho o < 5B M FE AT
expenses & - 5,138 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE - 2,224 1,338 720
At 31 March 2022 7202263831 H
Trade payables B HENFIA - 791 - _
Other payables and accrued A A 3008 N e At
expenses BH - 3,926 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE - 1,304 123 -
MR S EAR AT / 452023 131
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6.

132

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 March

6.

PR EE (8
() MIANHMERIAESR

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Financial assets: TRMEE
Financial assets at amortised costs REHEN AT RN SR EE 29,966 49,281

Financial liabilities: EHMEE
Financial liabilities at amortised costs IR AT RS BB S 7,522 4,717

(f) Fair values M A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and ARENERAENERBENGS A

financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

—  Sales of biometrics identification devices, security products
and other accessories

— Provision of auxiliary and other services includes (i)
maintenance, installation and solution services; and (ii)
software licensing.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include other income, finance
costs, unallocated costs, which comprise selling and distribution
expenses, corporate administrative and other operating expenses,
impairment loss of trade receivables and income tax expense.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented in the consolidated
financial statements as they are not regularly reviewed by the
Group’s directors.

AR R R REEEE S B8 QT ER
2=,

2 EE R

REBEWMERT 2| EOT

— HEEVEEEREE
[

CRRERREM

- RERERHEGRE  SE0#E kK
FREORTTEIRF ¢ B (i) FAFRFA] ©

ko BT IR R Em MRS
BEBERTRRMEE
ERIERE -

REBE ] 25
RESMEEE BN - AR
SHIREE - B 2MAEBTY

W aN

RENBNEtBRESAMBRRME4m
EHR - DEDEN RSB N BEEMBKA - B
PR RAOBCARAR (K BiEHE Lo ks - &
ETBRREMEERY B RUFERERR
AR SRR -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. HER(E)
(a) Operating segment of the Group (@) AEELESI
Information about reportable segment profit or loss: AT EWMOFBERAER
Sales of
biometrics
identification
devices,
security
products  Provision of
and other auxiliary and
accessories other services Total
HEEYREH
HAIFEE -
REZEM RHUBRER
R E A w4 H R At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAT
Year ended 31 March 2023 HZE2023F3HA31HIEEE
Revenue from external customers 2R 8 7285 P KU 25 27,737 15,414 43,151
Segment profit 53 BB A 12,296 712 13,008
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE2022F3A31HLEE
Revenue from external customers & BN & F B9 UL =S 32,391 16,561 48,952
Segment profit 73 BB A 10,863 5,805 16,668
Reconciliations of reportable segment and profit or loss: Al 2 p FLEAIB AL IR
2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FABT
Profit or loss: B
Total profit of reportable segments Al 2o FEY % F 4858 13,008 16,668
Other income EH U A 1,497 122
Selling and distribution costs THE R SRR (9,639) (7,158)
Corporate administrative and EITHREMEERT
other operating expenses (28,675) (82,521)
Impairment loss of trade receivables B S W IE R AR (96) (46)
Finance costs BTG AR (119) (106)
Income tax expense FraRim= (132) (146)
Consolidated loss for the year FANERAEE (24,156) (23,187)
133
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. 2EER(E)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
Information about the Group’s non-current assets based on BRAEBRAEMENE ZIERBEE
the geographical location is presented as follows: BREFWT :
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR T FABT
Hong Kong 55 556 -
Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, INBEERREME BERZE £/
right-of-use assets and intangible assets. BEEAREBREE -
Information about the Group’s revenue from external BRAAERIREEMERVE 2 REI
customers presented based on the geographical location BEFPWEHERZS0T -
where the Group operates is as follows:
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong B8 39,740 44,486
PRC A 3,179 3,982
Macau JRFT 232 484
Consolidated totall FEEME 43,151 48,952
() Information about major customers € FRHERFFHEH

RGN E E2023F K 2022F 3 A31H
IEFEBBAEEREI0ONNEZRRE

Information about major customers whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of revenue of the Group during the years

ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is as follows: BRI
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FE T FHET
Customer A (note) BEAME) N/AFE A 5,775
Note: Customer A did not contribute over 10% of the revenue of the HfeF © HZE2023F3A31 HILFE » BREAWE
Group for the year ended 31 March 2023. For the year ended BEB IR AN EE ISR 10% © & Z= 2022
31 March 2022, both reportable segments of the Group FI3ABNHIEFE  AEEA2HH Y
reported revenue from Customer A. BASRE TP AR
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8. REVENUE

Revenue represents the invoiced values of goods sold and service
rendered, after allowances for returns and discounts. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

8. W=

Yo ts e P B mm R SR IR TS R HIBR R B AT 01&
MBERE - ARBFARSEHOOMET

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FH&T
Sales of biometrics identification devices, HEEYMBEH#AIEE  REEGK
security products and other accessories H b B 5 27,737 32,391
Provision of auxiliary and other services RHERE RHARS 15,414 16,561
43,151 48,952
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 F
Revenue from contracts with customers FHEFKHRELEAE15HBER HK$’000 HK$’000
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HNEEE#HKE F#&T FHET
Recognised at a point in time RE—REEER 32,651 36,445
Recognised over time & 5 1 1 3R 10,500 12,507
43,151 48,952
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance DEE2023F3AN HBR TRENET(CREITHK
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2023 BB ARIBIT) R 5B N FETEA M A R S 1
and the expected period of recognising revenue as follows: T
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Provision of auxiliary and other services RERE R H AR
Within one year N—FR 7,938 7,147
More than one year but not more than LR —FEDRME
two years 921 522
8,859 7,669
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. HalgA
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHT
Interest income FEHA 82 33
Government grants* R THE B > 822 -
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEME - BRERZE
equipment EEZ W 35 =
Foreign exchange gains, net HE 3 o 2 7 R 556 =
Others Hth 2 89
1,497 122
* Government grants represent subsidies from the Government of the * B BN 16 B B BT = B AR IR IR BE 3 5T &
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Employment REEEERE - RIREIR - AR E W EBUT B
Support Scheme. At the end of the reporting period, there is no M ES B AR BT IR S B b A FIE o
unfulfilled conditions nor other contingencies attached to the
government grants.
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BiESE A
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET
Effective interest expenses on lease liabilities  FAEBENBEEHN M 119 106
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11.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

11. BRBAESE
REBHBEAERDENR,/ GEA) U TSE

following: &38R
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaE THERT FHIT
Amortisation of intangible assets mR AR (M 19)
(note 19) = 21
Depreciation e
— Owned assets (note 17) — BEBEME17) (@) 272 743
— Right-of-use assets (note 18) — (FRELE M 18) = 1,016
Staff costs (including directors’ BEINKN(BREESENE)
emoluments) (b)
— Salaries, bonus, allowances and —¥e T EBER
other benefits in kind H B FzE 28,818 26,331
— Commission — e 508 629
— Retirement benefits scheme — RRREFIET R
contributions 1,442 1,350
30,768 28,310
Gain on disposals of property, HEYE - BERX
plant and equipment Bl e (35) -
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 14,284 16,162
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net  [& ¥, (Uz5) /518 548 (556) 191
Operating lease charges in RHEEZH T ENLE
respect of premises under HEXH
short-term lease arrangements 1,800 2,100
Auditors’ remuneration ZEME 2 550 550
Impairment loss of trade receivables B 5B RERE 96 46
Impairment loss on property, ¥ - BE KRR EEE
plant and equipment 742 5,499
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 1§ F 1 & 2= Rl 518 4,601 825
Allowance for inventories (included in FEREE(BIENE MR
costs of sales and services rendered)  ARFEAK ) 1,884 2,492
Notes: Bt
(a) Depreciation on owned assets of approximately HK$54,000 for the (@) HZE2023F3AMHILEFEMNABEENED

year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$117,000) is included in costs

of sales and services rendered.

(b) Staff cost of approximately HK$6,024,000 for the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: HK$5,042,000) are included in cost of sales and

services rendered.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

54,0008 7T (2022 £ : 117,000 7C) ©at A E
IR ARFEBL A o

BH E2023F3A3IHLFE BT ALY
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12,
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12, FrE®iREx
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERTEIE — EABREH

Provision for the year FREE 152 166
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (20) (20)
Total tax charge for the year FARBEE AR 132 146

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax Regime, one of the Company’s
Hong Kong subsidiaries is subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at
the rate of 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) for the first HK$2 million of its
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% (2022:16.5%) on its
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million. Other Hong Kong
subsidiaries not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax Regime are
subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5%
(2022:16.5%) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

For the Group’s subsidiary established and operated in the PRC is
subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of 25% (2022:
25%) during the year. No PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 as the
Group’s PRC subsidiary either did not generate any assessable
profits or has sufficient tax losses forward to set off against its
assessable profit for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

For the Group’s subsidiary established and operated in Macau is
subject to Macao Complementary Tax, under which taxable income
of up to MOP600,000 (2022: MOP600,000) is exempted from
taxation with taxable income beyond this amount to be taxed at the
rate of 12% (2022: 12%) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

No provision for UK Corporation tax is required as the UK
subsidiary did not generate any assessable profits for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

REBBRUNHERE R ABRLEESHTIA -

BEMBFESREE AR EFR—MEEH B
ARARGTERFEN N E 2 5B B TIZ8.25%
(20224 : 8.25%) WITA RN BB FEH - WHE
FRiE2 B BT AT E R TR FI1Z 16.5% (2022
F:16.5%) IR EHNEBNET - & =2023
FIABLEFE EMTHFEMATEHREE
HE BN B A BIZB1Z16.5% (2022 4F : 16.5%) H)
PRGN BEBFIEH o

FR - NEBERBEKL REEHHEBARAER
FRE25% (2022 F : 25%) P R > ¥ S HL -
B AN 5= B O AP (B Y B 1 ) 4 E A T B RR AR
i M5B B SR BB TE B 1B AR S LB = 2023
F 202263 A31 BIEFEMERTRF] - #E
Z 20234 20223 A31 HIEFE W EREFHH
B E TSR o

AN EE BT R PR S M A I BB 1 R 78 S5 AR P
FrS®7ER - It - BiE2023F3A31ALLFE -
JE 3% B U A £ =600,00008 9 ¥ (20224 :
600,0008PI¥E) B N - B S ERNERT
UAIE 12% (2022 F = 12%) FUFE RN -

BE2023F3 A1 HIFFE - AR RENB AR
WmEEFEAERTESN - Bt BALRE QT
T VERE
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax

rate of the Group is as follows:

12. FIS%im= (&)
Fr{SRi6 X ER T AT B RIAR EEE B SR
RS BENEERENT

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TERT THT

Loss before tax KRB A 18 (24,024) (23,041)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% A E 16.5% (2022 F : 16.5%)

(2022: 16.5%) ATERRIE (3,964) (3,801)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable TREBBANT IS 2 (144) )
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7N $135 B 32 9 T 75 57 28 2,460 1,855
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREREZEOTRETE

not recognised (25) 829
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBIGE RO IGTE 1,989 1,411
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (20) (20)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HB AT TRRRATE (12) 4)
Tax effect of preferential tax rate BERENBHE (152) (120)
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHAL 132 146
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, where of the Company, or its

(@

140

subsidiaries undertaking were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2023

13. EERESMS
(@) ESEE

HEEEE(T

AR A S EE A RH
AR ATEXNREMBOFHMOT -

BZE2023F3HA31 BILFE

Retirement
Other benefits
Salaries and  Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees allowances bonus inkind  contributions Total
Hity RIER
e FeREE EEEA BEWAE HE 5 @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TR THET THET TET TR TR
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony B 4
(“Mr. Tony Yuen”) ([Bsk]) - 1,944 318 648 18 2,928
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline ERTT
(‘Ms. Pauline Yuen’) (3¢9 - 1,644 276 - 18 1,938
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle BBkt
(note ) (Hiai) - 650 130 - 15 795
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen REELE - 420 - - 18 438
Mr. Hui Cho Lung (note ii) TR L (Hsti) - 54 - - 4 58
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph EBNEE 240 - - - - 240
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella PEEL+
(note i) (Hritii) 16 - - - - 16
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Mr. Wong Ching Wan (note iv) ~ F&Z5%4 (Fiitiv) 95 - - - - 95
Ms. Wang Xiaoman (note v) TESut () 15 - - - - 15
Mr. Chung Billy ERELE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Poon Wai Hung, ERELE
Richard 120 - - - - 120
606 4,712 724 648 73 6,763
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEER{ESM< (&)

(continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) EEBME(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE2022F3HA31HLEFE
Retirement
Other benefits
Salaries and Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees allowances bonus inkind contributions Total
Hith RIKER
e He Rz WETEA EMAlE BEEA 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FTHET THT TAL TRL THL
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony mERLE
(‘Mr. Tony Yuen’) (M) - 1,776 318 633 18 2,745
Ms. Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline ERTT
(“Ms. Pauline Yuen’) ([zt]) - 1,500 276 - 18 1,794
Ms. Sun Ngai Chu, Danielle BR%kat - 652 130 - 18 800
Mr. Mui Pak Kuen IBHERELE = 402 — = 18 420
Non-executive director FGTESR
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan, Joseph EBAEE 240 = = = = 240
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Hui Man Ho (note vi) AU E (M) 85 - - - - 85
Ms. Wang Xiaoman (note v) TESuL (i) 35 - - - - 35
Mr. Chung Billy BERKE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Poon Wai Hung, EEEEE
Richard 120 - - - - 120
600 4,330 724 633 72 6,359
Notes: Hat -
i) Resigned on 31 January 2023 0} 7202341 431 HEHE
(ii) Appointed on 10 January 2023 (i) 20231 A10 BEZ T
(i) Appointed on 10 February 2023 (il 7202342 A10 HEZ(E
(iv)  Appointed on 17 June 2022 (v) 202246 A17T HEEE
(v) Appointed on 15 December 2021 and retired on 16 May 2022 v) R2021F 12 15 H & £ £ - W 72022
F5H16 HRE
(vl Resigned on 15 December 2021 (vi) 202112 B 15 HEFE
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or REZ2028F 202243 A31 HILFE -
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 WiEEERENRERETAMNSOLTH -

March 2023 and 2022.
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

142

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2023 included 2 (2022: 2) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2022: 3) individuals are

13. EERESMHS(E)

(b) HUBRSEHMAL
HZE2023F3A31AILLEE  AEBAM
BRFMALTHRIEIE2E (20224F : 24)
EE HReE LMD R -
H#3% (2022 4F : 38) ALHBNSHEF)20

set out below: T
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Basic salaries and allowances HEAH & KM 4,184 3,663
Performance bonus RIRTEAT 388 268
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3 (k& Fll 52 4 2% 36 36
4,608 3,967
The emoluments fell within the following band: B B A T EE -
Number of individuals
A
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =2 1,000,000 7% 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T & 1,500,000 7% 7T 3 3
3 3

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Senior management’s emoluments

Senior management represents the executive directors. The
emoluments paid or payable to senior management during
the years have been set out in the analysis presented above.

B E2023F k20223 31 H IEF E -
AEEHEAEMNESIESHIMAL
FHERTBH & ¢F 73 N B2 =k 0 B2 AR SR R 1Y 52
BRI RBERAHE -

() PREEENE

SREBBENTES - FABNREN
BRERENMES N X2 DT -
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EERESMSE (&)
(continued)

(d) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (d) ZFEERRS  THIEHNPNERES
arrangements or contracts
Save for disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial BRERE B SRR M 9 FT IR FEE A - BEAE
statements, no other significant transaction, arrangement and ARBIRFTANTEARRBEERESHE
contract in relation to the Group’s business to which the HEESHERE R HEEANERMEA
Company was a party and in which a director of the SEEKEENEMEARS  THERE
Company and the director’s connected party had a material RIPA RS LRI D R TF4E o

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year of at any time during the year.

14. DIVIDENDS 14. KRB
No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company during the RABRFE AW E L T IRERARE (2022 F -
year (2022: Nil). ) e
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. SR EBE
(a) Basic loss per share (@ BREXREBE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the BREAREBBIERTIISETE :
following:
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF# T FHET
Loss &8
Loss for the purpose of calculating STESRAREIENEE
basic loss per share (24,156) (23,187)
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022
’000 ‘000
TR FAx
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary FFEEREAREBA TR INE
shares for the purpose of calculating FH g
basic loss per share 800,000 800,000
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEE
Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per AT EBEEELT R SREBSEIR
share for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 as there HE E 20283F K2022F 3 A31HIEFE
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares. HEREREGIEER -
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16.

144

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5%
(2022: 5%) of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 (2022: HK$1,500) per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
the employees of a Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC is a
member of a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
this subsidiary. The only obligation of this subsidiary with respect to
the central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined
contribution plan available at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

16. BRRBFRIFTE

AEBERBERBREDESH GO AEEM
FréEREEEFERIMEAESTE(RESH
B AEEHBRBESHIZHREBFERTE
B156% (20224 : 6%) 5t H - B REEFAKS
& %8 /51,5008 7T (2022 4F < 1,500 7T ) R E M
BB HEREEHRENES

REBEDBAABRR RS - REBEPBERIN
BB X B B9 B 2 75 Th BT E ARy P SRR IR
Tt 8 - ZMBARARPREKSFEIZESR
EAXFERTENETAD LB UARRKE
MEBHES - #077 H R AEAEZ N B AR
BRE FORFRINE B RR KB B - %HTB
NAFLR SRR RS S ME— RERENF SR
THRERHEK -

#2023 FF [ 2022 4F 3 A 31 A I & 7E fE AT &l
B E R R AT T -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y%  BERRE

Furniture Biometrics
and identification Motor Computer Leasehold
fixtures devices vehicles equipment  improvement Total
ENEE
BRREE BRIEE RE EKRE HE#E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAL AT AT THT AT
Cost B
At 1 April 2021 R2021E4A18 994 436 1,811 1,101 - 4,342
Additions NE 14 281 - 58 4,793 5,146
Exchange realignment R 8 - - 8 - 16
At 31 March 2022 and R202243B31R K
1 April 2022 2022F4 B1H 1,016 mn7 1,811 1,167 4,793 9,504
Additions B 560 271 643 96 - 1,570
Disposals HE - - (137) - - (137)
Exchange realignment ~ EX#% (10) - - (21) - (31)
At 31 March 2023 1202353 A31H 1,566 988 2,317 1,242 4,793 10,906
Accumulated depreciation ZiHiTE R HE
and impairment
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 710 621 7 1,707 842 - 3,247
Charge for the year FAZE 177 117 78 83 293 743
Impairment A 211 523 31 234 4,500 5,499
Exchange realignment R A% 7 - - 8 - 15
At 31 March 2022 and R2022F3A31 B R
1 April 2022 2022F4 B1H 1,016 mn7 1,811 1,167 4,793 9,504
Charge for the year ERXH 112 54 87 19 - 272
Disposals HE - - (137) - - (137)
Impairment AE 448 217 - 77 - 742
Exchange realignment ERAR (10) - - (21) - (31)
At 31 March 2023 2023537 31H 1,566 988 1,761 1,242 4,793 10,350
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2023 R20235F3A31H = - 556 - - 556
At 31 March 2022 120223 4318 - - - - - -
R EE AR AT / £372023 145
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FREEE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$’000
FHET

At 1 April 2021 R2021F481H 1,704
Additions NE 137
Depreciation e (1,016)
Impairment DERES (825)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R2022%F 3 431 HKk20229F431H =
Additions nE 4,601
Impairment WE (4,601)

At 31 March 2023

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$4,052,000 (2022:
HK$1,390,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$Nil (2022: HK$Nil) as at 31 March 2023. These
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

7202353 A31H =

202343 A31H R E & 494,052,000
57T (2022 £F ¢ 1,390,000 7T ) i R AR (F A E
EHNTBILR2F : THL) c 2FHEHET
MEANERRE - EHEASENHEEEF IR
WSRO - HEEENSHEE AR BIERME -

purposes.

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets S EHTER - 1,016
Impairment BE 4,601 825

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBENSMZ (GHAMBEA)
(included in finance costs) 119 106

For both years, the Group leases office and staff quarters for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 3
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

146

#ﬁﬂliﬁ FEBEERLAEREIFEEMHE

B2 M HOBREE R3F - HEMKITIRE R
HERER - B2 8B RER &G B’\?ﬁmfﬁ
HEFETRESEB RS ARERAAL
HIE S NLEE A MR BITHIR -
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19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BREE
HK$’000
FHIT
Cost AR
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 and 2021648 1H - 202263H31H
31 March 2023 20224 H1HK% 20233 H31H 1,850
Accumulated amortisation E-Sg: i
At 1 April 2021 #202144 818 1,829
Charge for the year FALH 21
At 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 and R202243H31H - 202254818 %
1,850

31 March 2023

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2023

At 31 March 2022

20233 A31H

AREE
M202343A31H

M2022%F3 31 H

Intangible assets represent internally generated capitalised software
development costs. Such intangible assets have definite useful life
and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

BIVEERNSELE 2 EAMMEMMFREERA - %
BVEAEARERACAFHMTILERENSF
WY -

INVENTORIES 20. ®E
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Merchandises P oh 22,535 21,961

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories are stated at
cost less allowance for inventories.

During the year, allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$1,884,000 (2022: HK$2,492,000) was charged to profit or loss.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

RIEHR - AEEFERRARFEREIIE -

F AR FE R HE 1,884,000/ JT (20224 -
2,492,000/ 7T) & AR &E kR °
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. EZEWFEE

2023 2022

2023 2022 &

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHT

From third parties KBEFE=H 11,277 12,004
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RIEEE (697) (601)
10,580 11,403

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. The
credit period granted to the customers generally range from 30 to
90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of

FEBEEZFPNEFBRATIERKR - AEPE
HEEESH—RNFI0EW0H - REEREHH
REERRFORETRBES - ANEHRHES
ERER

REBZER BB ENE S RUGIR HBRRE

allowance for doubtful debts and based on the invoice date is as B RSO ¢
follows:

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHT
0-90 days 0F 90K 6,173 6,153
91-180 days 91E 180K 759 2,040
181-365 days 181 £365K 1,500 3,106
Over 365 days 365 KA E 2,148 104
10,580 11,403
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.

As of 31 March 2023, trade receivables of approximately
HK$5,960,000 (2022: HK$8,779,000) were past due but not
considered as default. These trade receivables related to customers
for whom are mainly listed companies or large property developers
with no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts and based on due
date, is as follows:

B 5 EWKIE ()

202343 A31H & 5 & Uk 3 IE 45,960,000
7 7T (2022 4F : 8,779,000 7T ) T #1 Hi 1B T 448
BEY - 25 E 5 UG8 8T 4T HIE MR 8%
MEF(EBALEMARSAREHERERN)E
B - 258 5 RUGIE (KR RREME) ZE 8 A
STERREBR DT T

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

1-90 days 1290K 1,718 3,389
91-180 days 91 £180k 936 1,626
Over 180 days 180 KA 3,306 3,764
5,960 8,779

The Group does not charge interest over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of reporting period, net of allowance for doubtful debts, are
denominated in the following currencies:

AR B0 4 A 5 T A R RN B, o

RIEHR - NEEE 5 EUKFOR (MR REE
1#) M REEA T EHEHE -

2023 2022
2023 fF 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
HK$ BT 10,497 11,076
RMB AR 65 127
MOP SRPTEE 18 200
10,580 11,403
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22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22. H{EWRIE BARERES

DEPOSITS
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFH T FHT
Deposits e 2,277 1,601
Prepayments FETFRIE 823 793
Value added tax receivables FEUEER 79 -
Others HAith 242 33
3,421 2,427
Neither of the above assets is past due nor impaired. The financial FIEEWARBEGSORE o 5T A LR 2 R
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for & EE TH B M AR ME R SR SR A FE MR IB B B ©
which there was no recent history of default.
23. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 23. RITRBESE
At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances of the RMEER  AEENRITERSERIEZTIE
Group are denominated in the following currencies: HEHE
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFH T FHET
HK$ BT 14,787 35,175
RMB AR 1,078 531
MOP SR 24 117
us$ ET 85 1,054
GBP B 1,892 -
Singapore dollars TN 2 2
17,868 36,879
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s 18 A R 540 A NS 8 38 <7 fh B S E B IR 151 K
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of WEIE C EENNMNEETEETE - R BIEPBEIN
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. DS IR - ANEEE AR BSIEERRINE S
However, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Regulations, the EHRITEARKE LI EME o

Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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24. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

reporting period, based on the invoice date is as follows:

24, BEHENFIE

RBEBRR  REZAHMAENAEREZEN

HRIBMERE AT -

2023 2022

2023 F 2022

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FET

0-30 days 0ZE 30K 221 171
31-60 days 31E60K 150 81
Over 60 days 60 KA 2,013 539
2,384 791

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies:

RBERR - AEEB BN FENREEAT

FIEHEEHE |

2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FETT
HKS$ BT 548 744
RMB AR 72 15
us$ eV 1,631 7
EURO BT 133 25
2,384 791
25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 25 HitENRERESTER
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Accruals for operations KB TEETEF 5,138 3,926
Value added tax payables FERTIB (AR = 84
5,138 4,010
MR E AR AR / FR2023 151
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEEE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BIEREMN BEAENNRE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 2022 F 2023 F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEr THL TERT THL
Within one year —&ER 2,224 1,304 2,075 1,268
In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ —FZFREF
(BEERME) 2,058 123 1,977 122
4,282 1,427 4,052 1,390
Less: Future finance charges B ARBERT (230) (37) N/A RiEH N/A RiE
Present value of lease obligations HEZKRE 4,052 1,390 4,052 1,390
Less: Amount due for settlement o M2 EAREIHEE
within 12 months (shown MEBE(NRBaRE
under current liabilities) ETR) (2,075) (1,268)
Amount due for settlement after R12EREEHEENSE
12 months 1,977 122
The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of RBERR  AEENHEAGREEBENTIE
reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: HEHE -
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
HKS AT 3,512 861
RMB AR 540 529
4,052 1,390
The average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is BRARHEAEN THEEEEFXR5% (2022
5% (2022: 5%). G 5%) .
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. EHEE
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 £
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Contract liabilities AHEE 8,859 7,669

The amounts represent the revenue received from sales of
maintenance and other services exceeding the revenue recognised
on straight-line basis over the respective terms of contract.

SEAKEHEERE MR HENRSBBRE

BOER BRI A BT HER USRI AR D ©

Movements in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: FAEHBEZSHNT
2023 2022
2023 £F 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FH&T
Balance at 1 April B4 A1 B 7,669 7,726
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AFRERRE GTAR4A1HH
recognising revenue during the year was EHEaE) mMERMENEaERD
included in the contract liabilities as at 1 April (7,148) (7,681)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of T E N E A AR S TR AT R B4R
billing in advance of maintenance and MmEH & LB EE N
other services 8,338 7,624
Balance at 31 March 38 A 31 Br#sk 8,859 7,669

At the end of reporting period, contract liabilities were classified in
accordance with the expiry date of the maintenance and other
service contracts entered into.

RIS & KR E R R Him D48 -

R|ERR - GHNAGETIRRARR & L H i
a8

2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FET

Analysed for reporting purpose: ESRE B 2 DT
Current liabilities REEE 7,938 7,147
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 921 522
8,859 7,669

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities balances
during the reporting period.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

RREHE  AOEBEERILEERED -
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28.

29.

154

BANK BORROWINGS

During the course of business, the Group would obtain banking
facilities in respect of import/export loans from a bank in Hong
Kong. At the end of the reporting period, no bank borrowing has
been drawn by the Group (2022: Nil).

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by:

(@  An unlimited guarantee issued by certain subsidiaries of the
Company for the Group’s banking facilities as at 31 March
2022 and 2023; and

(b)  Registered security over deposits of the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company to the extent of
borrowing being drawn by the Group as at 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had undrawn facilities amounted
to approximately HK$5,000,000 (2022: HK$5,000,000).

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$26,534,000 (2022: HK$14,741,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses approximately HK$1,770,000 (2022:
HK$1,707,000) that will expire in 5 years from the year it originated
for offsetting against future taxable profits.

28.

29.

RITHER

EXEBBIET  ARERE-HBBNRTIVG
BRI HAOBERORITRE - RBEHR - K
S EIREURT B 50 (2022 FF « &) -

REERITRE B IS HEIN -

(a) 20224 K2023E3A31H AR AlHE
FHBARRAEBIRITEE 2 HAER
BER: R

(o) 202243 A31 B N2023E3A31H &t
AR R RARRETH B A B 5
I UAEBERDAERAR o

R2023F3A31A AEERRERNREN A
5,000,000 7T (2022 £F : 495,000,000 7T)

IEFER I

RFEHR AEENARDABTEBENLN S
26,534,000 7T (2022 4F : 14,741,000 7T.) * 7]
FAVEHE 85 R PR FE AR B ) o FR A SR 2 U SRR B9
AAIFEAIME - RSB RY ERRELEREE
E o stAKRBERIIBEIENEIEL1,770,0008 7T
(20224 1,707,000 L) KRB EEARAF
AEm - B AR SR R ERR B F o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. KA
Number of
shares Amount
gvig < 4=| ot |
000 HK$'000
FR% T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR EEO0.01 B T T @A
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, R2021FE4A18 ~ 202243H31H »
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 2022F 4 H1H K& 20233 A31H 5,000,000 50,000
Number of
shares Amount
Ko EE S&
‘000 HK$’000
Fh% FHT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEOC.01 B I ERAX
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, R2021F4 18 ~ 202243 A318 »
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 2022F 4 A1 HK&2023F 3 A31H 800,000 8,000

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group comprises
all components of shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs
as well as the issue of new debts, redemption of existing debts or
selling assets to reduce debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is
that to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares. Based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of at least 25% throughout the year ended 31 March 2023. As
of 31 March 2023, 77.61% (2022: 74.25%) of the shares were in
public hands.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

AEBERERN AR RAREAEEFELLL
N B BBER RIRA ST AR R R &
KRB - AEENEARBRERRERNAE
MRTTR -

REEFRBERERKARLGHEEREHRNR
BRIMEEEEERER - AREKeFERRNK
B BITHREBRGOBRARETHER B
REBEHRAHEEENRDEHE A FHAE
& AR - RE 220234 £ 202243 831 H
ILEE EXEENEE  BERSUREMEIEDL

W—INMERFMEEARERAREERNDEREED
25% N RFFAR S DA OB X P T bz ©
BRERARAARIMESHNER RIBESHRM - K
NAIREZE20283F 3 A31 BILEEFEANEFHE
125% K7 R ARFEIE - H2023F3 A31H -
77.61% (2022 4F : 74.25%) IR B ARALE
ﬁ °
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

31. FAARBMBMRE

COMPANY
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB MR = =
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRINKRE 18,790 24,558
18,790 24,558
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments FEFRIE 244 240
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NG 702 6,739
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR S 11,335 27,486
12,281 34,465
Current liabilities REBERE
Accrued expenses JEETER 17 65
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBT B A B3k 1E 5,065 5,515
5,082 5,580
Net current assets REEETFHE 7,199 28,885
NET ASSETS EEFRHE 25,989 53,443
Capital and reserves EXRR#HE
Share capital A% A 8,000 8,000
Reserves whiE 17,989 45,443
TOTAL EQUITY MR 25,989 53,443

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 M2023F 6 A21 HEES SR -

June 2023.

Yuen Kwok Wai, Tony
B Bl {2 S 4

Yuen Mei Ling, Pauline
it
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32. RESERVES 32. R
(@ Group (@ AE&EH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein AEERFRENSBELRAEPNEHEREIE

mEEMEERERRGEEREEERNA
and other comprehensive income and consolidated 2751 o
statement of changes in equity.

are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

(b) Company (b) ZA&RAF
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
R EE HABB RitER st

(note 32(c)(i)) (note 32(c)(v))
(MeEsze)) (M s2e))

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHT TAT
At 1 April 2021 R2021E4A1H 51,682 22,458 (22,016) 52,124
Loss and total comprehensive  FREE &2 H Kz
income for the year ek - - (6,681) (6,681)
At 31 March 2022 and R202243A31RH
1 April 2022 K 2022F4F1H 51,682 22,458 (28,697) 45,443
Loss and total FREBERZERE
comprehensive e
income for the year - - (27,454) (27,454)
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H 51,682 22,458 (56,151) 17,989
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32. RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

158

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and after deduction of capitalisation issue
and issuance costs of shares.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregated amount of share capital, share premium
and capital reserve of subsidiaries comprising the
Group at the date on which Power Truth Holdings
Limited (“Power Truth”), the then holding company of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group, was acquired
by the Company, over the nominal value of 2,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 10 November 2015.

Legal reserve

The Macao Commercial Code number 377 requires
that companies incorporated in Macau should set
aside a minimum of 25% of their respective profit after
income tax to the legal reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of their
capital.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus arose from the excess of the
consideration over the nominal value of the 1,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 10 November 2015. The
consideration represented the net asset value of Power
Truth as at 30 September 2015.

32. f#fE (&)
) RENHERRE
() RRE

RIEFSHEARE KRR
ERNESAIHED K T ARRARBR -
HEEZEDKREERR  ARF
ARBENNBR B EEBBED I
EETS ©

Bt i (B ?EDA%%%%T/‘EEE’JF
REBETRMDAELRNRE - LKL
&%%ﬁﬁkﬁ‘ﬁ&%@%ﬁﬂ@@zﬁ

i)  ECHEE
EHEBIEAEEETHBRRRA
AREAEEETHE QRN
ERARMEZERER AR ([HE])
EHIZBA  BRDEERENFEERE
B HEARAIRE2015F11 A10H
B &= B S 4H 2 1T R 2,000 AR Ak 10 E 1B
R ESE o

(i)  EEREE
@Fﬁiﬁﬂﬂ“a??%ﬁ:ﬁi oSBT
A A RIZER S B RATSBIE &
ﬂ%¢%%%kﬁm%% BHER
18 45 8502 BUB S 7 B R A 50% ) 7K

(iv) SNEREREE
SN E R B EE R E RN TSR
BMEAMEFNNBELZE - [
2 BRAR A B 75 3R 35 I 5 4(o)il) FT 8k Y
BETBUREGEE -

)  HEAE
BARBELBRBHBIEARRIRE
2015F 11 A10AMEEEAETH
1,000 IR AR D 1B 2 8258 - RIEIEH
B 2015949 A30 HMEEFME -
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HZE20233A31 HILFE
33.

34.

MR EE AR AR / 32023

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 18 January 2018, written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company was passed to conditionally approve and adopt a share
option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) to recognise and
motivate the contributions that eligible participants have made or

may make to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 18 January
2018 will remain in force for a period of ten years from its effective
date to 17 January 2028. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme
of the Company are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 January 2018.

There was no share option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its effective date and up to
the end of the reporting period.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 are

33. ERESTE
20181 A18H ' ARARIRFEMARTERA
LA IR B IR BE IR i 5T &1 ([ IR FE ST &)
NRGRABEERS2EEHANEEEEL A
BETELB AL

AARN20184F1 A 18 HEF MBI EAEI 5 H
AW BEE2028F 1 A17 B It +FHR#EE
W ARARERETENFBRRALFAEA

20184 1 A 30 H B EFRMI&RMY -

BAMBMEREERSHAR  ARAMERE
B A A St B L (AR R AR A -

34. HEBLA

RN BRI EBA RN 202343 531 B EHI5EI 0

set out below: B
Place/date of
incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
A8 BMAYL/RULLE/BE EEMRAZRE FEREREA TEEBREELY
Direct Indirect
Hi% Gk
Power Truth British Virgin Islands, 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
28 August 2014 of US$1 each
HEL EBEARS 1,000 R BREE 100% - REEKR FE
20148 F28H 1R EBR
Prime Intelligence Management  Hong Kong, HK$100,000 100% - Inactive, Hong Kong
Company Limited 24 April 2018
ELBEERERAF 5k 100,000 7T 100% - BEX B
201854 A 24H
Prime Intelligence Information ~ Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 100% - Inactive, Hong Kong
Technology Company 20 April 2020
Limited
ExEEARERAR BB 1,000,000/ 7T 100% - BEX B
202054 A 208
Prime Intelligence Solution United Kingdom, GBP313,184 100% - Inactive, United Kingdom
UK Limited 6 September 2022
Prime Intelligence Solution HE - 313,184 588 100% - EEE HE
UK Limited 20229 A 6H
Prime Intelligence Trading Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 100% - Inactive, Hong Kong
Company Limited 20 April 2020
EZEwE5ERAR &k 1,000,000 7T 100% - BEE AR
202054 A 208
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

34. ME2TE (&)

Place/date of
incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
8 TR RULH B EFMRAZRE FERERES TEEBREERY
Direct Indirect
Hi# M
Solution Expert Technology Hong Kong, HK$1,500,000 = 100%  Sales of biometrics identification devices and
Limited 7 June 1999 security products; and provision of
application software, Hong Kong
EHRBEBERRA EE 1,500,000 7T - 100% HEEMEEHEHIRERRZER:
199966 A 7R RRfEmEARY B8
Solution Expert Engineering Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100%  Sales of biometrics identification devices and
Limited 9 April 2001 security products; and provision of system
installation, application software and repair
and maintenance services, Hong Kong
HAIRBRRA EE 10,0007 7T - 100% HEEMEHEANEERRRER
200144 A9H RREZGRE  EREATMAUR
ERREERY &%
Solution Expert Technology Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding; sales of biometrics
(R&D) Limited 30 May 2003 identification devices and security products;
and provision of application software,
Hong Kong
EAREMRERERAR  BE 1,000,000/ 7T - 100% REER HEEMEHENEERRZER
200345 H30H RiRHEmARAR &%
Solution Expert Technology Macau, MOP25,000 - 100%  Sales and provision of installation and
(Macau) Limited 13 September 2004 maintenance of security and information
technology system, Macau
AR CEP) BERAR A 25,000 %P5 % - 100% HERREHZ2 REARRRRNZER
2004%9R13H & R
=R R BB AT PRC, Registered and - 100%  Sales of biometrics identification devices;
(“SE Shenzhen”) 22 October 2003 paid up capital of and provision of application software and
HK$10,000,000 related after-sale services, PRC
SRR (R BRAF FE EEINE e - 100% HEEMEHENRE  REAERRER
=) 2003F10 A 22H 10,000,000 % 7T B RARERRY - T H

Note: SE Shenzhen is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the

PRC.
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. #LRERE&REXRME

CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () RMETBMELEBECHIE
activities
The table set forth below is the detail changes in the Group’s TR AEEREZDMEEABZF
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash MEH aRFRRELFRED - BEE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing PFMEEZABENRSRESRIRRIE
activities are those for which cash flows are, or future cash enERNARRGEReRERSEAR
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement MEEDAEHEREZEE -

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIE2023F3HA31HLEEFE
New
1 April lease Interest Exchange 31 March
2022  arrangement Cash flows charges realignment 2023
2022F 2023 F
4A1H HEERY BEeRE FSER ERAE 3A31A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TR TR TARL TR TARL
Lease liabilties (note 26)  TRE& & (#i26) 1,390 4,601 (2,018) 119 (40) 4,052
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BZ2022F3A31HILFE
New
1 April lease Interest Exchange 31 March
2021 arrangement Cash flows charges realignment 2022
20214 2022F
4A18 MRERH Reng MEEBRA 3 % 3A31A8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL TR TAL THEL TAT TAL
Lease liabilties (note 26) MR & (Hz£26) 2,882 187 (1,748) 106 13 1,390
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEERSRLLE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for lease PREBSRERANNDEESTEEAT
comprise the following: E=9
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Within operating cash flows KEREMENRN 1,919 2,206
Within financing cash flows BMERSRENRN 1,899 1,642
3,818 3,848
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35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

162

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (Continued)

35.

FERERBRME (B)

(b) HERESRHAHEE

These amounts relate to the following: B TIHE MBS -

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET

Lease rental paid in respect of finance TREREYANES
leases 2,018 1,748

Lease rental paid in respect of short-term ~ gtE #ATH &L (NS
lease 1,800 2,100
3,818 3,848

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BEAREIE

As of 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any capital
commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of the
reporting period (2022: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 May 2023, the Company entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement (the “Strategic Cooperation Agreement”) with Yidian
Chengpin (Nantong) Network Co., Limited* (1823 5 (59 8 ) 4945
AR 7]) (“Yidian Chengpin”), a company established under the
laws of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) which mainly
operates the business of e-commerce platform. Pursuant to
Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Company and Yidian
Chengpin will cooperate on various matters including but not limited
to research and development on application of biometric
identification technology, artificial intelligence technology, and
trading and logistic supply chain. The Strategic Cooperation
Agreement shall be effective for a term of one year. Details of the
above are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 11 May
2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save for those transactions or balances of related parties disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had
the following material transactions with its related parties during the
year.

37.

38.

39.

HE2023F N2022F3A31H - KEEIW EA
{A] & A o

HREE
AR B0 S B R I S AE R R A B 1 (2022 4F

EE\) °
=

mEHRER

R2023F5 A 118 » AR R B2 (FR) S
wAERAG ([REBR DT LBESERE (B
BAERE])  ZRBREFEARLME( &
Bl ZERKY  FBEEETHABFAER R
BEESERE A AR EEENREREES
HETEE  BREETEREDHAEMN - AT
BEERIMTNERMEUARE SRR ESE - 8
BAEERENBERREAE—F - B EXFBR
RARNBBHIA2023F5 811 BHIAH ©

BBERS
BiRaUBRRAMEHRENZEEH IS

Sk - ARERENEEMBTA THEA
%5
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39. BEHAIRS (&)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EEREBE A MIRRB
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE FE T AT

Sales of goods to related companies: [IZ5 A 71 $H &S E M ¢

— Long Yield Company Limited — B ARA R ([BR])
(‘Long Yield”) (), (i) 83 41
Services rendered to related ) B A RIR A AR ES -
companies:
— Long Yield 3 (i), (i) 57 96
— SoHo Business Center Limited — SoHo Business Center
(“SoHo”) Limited ([ SoHo ) (), (i) 32 104
89 200
Rental expenses paid to a BB AR MESRY
related company
— Global Technology Corporation  — #EEEAGRAF([HSE])
Limited (“Global Technology”) (i), (iii) - 450
— Brilliant Capital Resources Limited — EE&AER AT ([EH )
(“Brilliant”) (i), (iv) 1,800 1,800
1,800 2,250
Notes: Bz -
(i The pricing of the related party transactions are mutually 0) MR 52 EERARE KR AR R
agreed by the Group and related companies. [BIE °
(i) Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are directors of Long (i) EERRAZ L RERNES -
Yield.
(i) Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are able to exercise @iy BreAKBri ¥ SoHo KB REBAF
significant influence over SoHo and Global Technology. 27-
(v)  Mr. Tony Yuen and Ms. Pauline Yuen are able to exercise v) BBt E A o
control over Brilliant.
(b) Key Management Compensation (b) FEEEEHH
Key management mainly represents the Company’s TEEBEIERARAES - BEOH
directors. Their remunerations have been disclosed in note BHE iR & B 5 R 3R B 5 13(a) 4R RE -
13(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
40. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. HMAEMB®HRE
The consolidated financial statements were approved and A HRERCR 202346 A21 HEEE T
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2023. MR HETIEE -
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hF M BHE

Year ended/As at 31 March
HESASNBILLEE N3AS3HE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 F 2022 F 2021 4 2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHEIT FHET FHET FHET
OPERATING RESULT REEE
Revenue Wz 43,151 48,952 45,987 50,842 50,878
Cost of sales and services rendered $5% & B 124 R 7GR A (30,143) (32,284) (26,201) (26,264) (25,054)
Gross profit ER 13,008 16,668 19,786 24,578 25,824
Other income Hapd A 1,497 122 2,466 891 702
Selling and distribution costs HE R DK (9,639) (7,158) (4,840) (5,141) (5,749)
Administrative and other expenses 1T & B4 552 (28,675) (26,197) (23,817) (22,933) (21,976)
Impairment losses on trade 2 5 WS EREEE
receivables (96) (65) (215) (162) -
Loss from operation REEE (23,905) (22,935) (6,620) (2,767) (1,199)
Finance costs B RS AR AR (119) (107) (176) (209) (28)
Loss before tax BBAT A (24,024) (23,041) (6,796) (2,976) (1,227)
Income tax expense FrigHiR < (132) (146) (305) (402) (259)
Loss for the year FRER (24,156) (23,187) (7,101) (8,378) (1,486)
Other comprehensive income FREMBZEKES  OK
for the year, net of tax: Biig -
[tems that may be reclassified AREEFHEEETN
to profit or loss: IHE :
Exchange differences on BREBINEE 2
translating foreign operations N =% (406) 141 538 (418) (273)
Total comprehensive income KARBEEAELER
for the year attributable to ZHIKEAE
the owners of the Company (24,562) (23,046) (6,563) (3,796) (1,759)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERBE
Total assets BEE 55,029 73,018 97,096 102,518 108,590
Total liabilities waE (20,433) (13,860) (14,892) (13,751) (13,695)
Net assets EERE 34,596 59,158 82,204 88,767 94,895
Equity attributable to owners RATHEE NEEER
of the Company 34,596 59,158 82,204 88,767 94,895

164

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited / Annual Report 2023



Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited

WEERRRERRLF



	封面
	GEM的特色
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層履歷
	環境、社會及管治報告
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底



